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Hiirriyet Gazetecilik ve Matbaacihik A.S.

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of Hiirriyet
Gazetecilik ve Matbaacilik A.$. (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries (together will be referred as the
“Group™) as of 30 June 2016 and the related consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the six-month period then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. Group management is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this consolidated interim financial information
in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards. Qur responsibility is to express a conclusion on this
consolidated interim financial information based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with Independent Auditing Standard on Review Engagements
2410, “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”.
A review of consolidated interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
Independent Auditing Standards and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we

would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying consolidated interim financial information does not present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Hiirriyet Gazetecilik ve Matbaacilik A.S. and its subsidiaries as of 30

June 2016, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the six-month period then ended
in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards.
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Ber%z
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Partner
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF 30 JUNE 2016 AND 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amounis expressed in Turkish Lira (*TL7) uniess otherwise indicated.)

(Reviewed) {Audited)
Note Current Period Prior Period
references 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
ASSETS
Current assets 298.161.589 315.814.507
Cash and cash cquivalenis 3 20979.743 86.987.420
Trade receivables
-Trade receivables from relaled parties 34 29.579.528 26.372.328
-Trade receivables
from non-related partics 9 216.335.885 18].683,764
Other receivables
-Other receivables
[rom non-related parties 10 919.262 993.681
Inventories 12 13.060.756 11.396.310
Prepaid expenses 21 3.617.763 2,726,015
Assets related with current tax 32 363.950 1.372.140
Other current asscts 22 4,104,700 4,082,649
Non-current asscts 545,742,543 557.533.933
Other receivables 10 1462338 1.444.690
Financial investments 6 1.465.404 1.393.257
Investments accounted
by the equity method 13 6.200.690 6.566.895
Investment property 14 120,236.338 86.937.100
Property, plant and equipment 15 162.878.694 180.969.110
Intangible assets
-Other intangible asscts I6 237.227.175 263.054.231
Delerred lax assets 32 153116857 10.005.631
Other non-curtent assets 22 1.149.027 1.163.013
Totfal assets 843.904.132 £73.348.440

The sccompanying noles form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF 30 JUNE 2016 AND 31 DECEMBER 2015

{(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL) unless otherwise indicated )

{Reviewed) {Audited)
Note Current Period Prior Period
references 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 293.046.619 361.956.283
Short-term borrowings 7 63.377.949 55402170
Short-term portion of
long-term borrowings 7 94,594,118 198.263.511
Trade payables
~Trade payables to related parties 34 21.742.903 24.120.290
-Trade payables
10 non-refated partics 9 535,548,850 36.660.202
Employee benefit payvables 11 8.959.544 6.021.343
Other payables
-Other payables
to non-related parties 10 7.879.649 8.593.760
Deferred income 21 13.400.034 5.590.682
Current income tax liabilities 32 2.816.353 261.684
Short-term provisions
-Shori-term provisions for
employment bencfits 18 13.029.447 12.181.762
-Other short-term provisions i8 7.539.963 12.735.687
Derivalive instruments 8 2.121.572 -
Other short-term liabilitics 22 2.036.217 2.123.192
Non-current liabilities 212.798.177 158.172.934
Long-lerm borrowings 1 117.648.697 62.343.476
Other payables 10 157.162 098,515
Long-term provisions
-Long-term provisions for
employment benefits 20 42.027.134 42254261
Deferred tax lability 32 52,965.184 52,632,797
Other long-lerm liabilities - 223,885

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of these consolidated financial statements



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF 30 JUNE 2016 AND 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lirg (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated )

{(Reviewed)

(Audited)

Nete Current Period Prior Period
references 30 June 2006 31 December 2015
EQUITY
Total equity 338,059.336 353,219,223
Equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent company 361.165.041 372.470.271
Share capital 23 352.000.000 552,000,004
Inftation adjustment Lo
share capital 23 77.198.813 77.198.813
Other comprehensive income and expenses
that will not be reclassificd subsequently
to profit or loss
~-Actuarial losses in
defined benefit plan 23 (15.3535.484) (13.355.484)
-Revaluation and remeasurement
gains 23 11.347.821 1.024.515
Share premiums 76.944 76.944
Other comprehensive income and expenscs
that may be reclassified subsequently
{o profit or loss
-Currency transiation differences 23 (2.882.278) (15.308.843)
-Losses on hedging instrumenis 23 (850,783) -
Restricted reserves 23 187.166.210 187.166.210

Accumiated losses
Net loss for the period

Non-controlling inferests

(414.331.884)
(33.204.318)

(23,105,705)

(383.832.770)
(30.499.114)

(19.251.048)

Total liabilities

843,904,132

873.348.440

These consolidaied financial stalements as at and for the period ended 30 June 2016 were approved by

the Board of Directors on 16 August 2016,

The accompanying noles form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE INTERIM PERIODS

30 JUNE 2016 AND 2015

(Amounis expressed in Turkish Lira {*TL"} unless otherwise indicated.)

{Reviewed) (Not Reviewed)
Current Period Current Period

{Reviewed) (Not Reviewed)

Prior Period

Prior Period

Note 1 Junuary- I April- 1 January- 1 April-
References 30 Junc 2616 30 June 2016 30 .June 2015 30 June 2015
Sales 24 250.638.208 152.428.765 307.838.209 164.151.968
Cost of sales («) 24 (165.738.024) (85.504.336) (168.482.782) (B5.617.768)
Gros profit 124.920.184 66.924.229 13%9.355.427 T8.534.200
Generzl administrative expenses (-) 25 (51.967.903) (23.393.904) {37.035.836) {27.721.284)
Marketing expenses {-) 25 (62.407.104) {31.663.166) (67.581.234) (37.237.341)
Other operating income 27 28.839.104 19.757.701 35.333.786 (6.952 825)
Other operating expenses (=) 28 (24.364.83%) (14.476.846) (27.134.421) (6.033.872)
Operating profif 15,019.446 16.948.014 22.937.722 368.678
Share of loss of investments accounted
by the equity sethod 13 (588.368) (311.887) (659.919) (447.021)
Income from investing activities 29 7.650.666 6.612.174 2.476.095 1.116.386
Expenses from investing activities (=) 30 {(47.078.28%) (47.072 407 (34,918 894) (34777811
Operating (loss) / profit
before finance expense (24.996,545) (23.824.100) (10.164.996) (33.539.774)
Finance expenses {-) / income 31 (26.808.31%) (18.863.637) (8.126.718) 4678291
(Loss) / profit before tax (5LB05.060)  (42.687.743)  (18.291.714)  (28.861.483)
Tax income / (expense) 7.130.450 3.282.216 (1.564.003) 11.289.251
Current fax (expensc) / tacome 32 {3.031.429) (2.954 917 (B.151.349 (4.234.188)
Deferred tax income 32 10.161.870 6.237.133 6.587.346 15,523,439
Net loss for the period (44.674.610} (39.405.527) {19.855.717) (17.872.232)
Allocation of net loss for the period
Atfributable to non-controlling interests (11.476.292) (9.970.724) (14.535.742) (6.321.807)
Attributable fo equity holders of the
pasert company (33.204 3183 (29434 803 (9.319.975) (11.230.425)
Loss per share (TL)
Loss from confinuing
operations per share 33 (0,0602) {3,053 {G,0169) {0,6204)

The accompanying noles formn an mtepral part of these consolidated financial stalements.



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE INTERIM PERIODS

30 JUNE 2016 AND 2015

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lire (*TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

(Reviewed)  (Not Reviwed) {Reviewed}  (Not Reviwed)
Current Pericd Current Peried Prior Period Prior Period
Note 1 January- 1 April- 1 January- 1 Aprii-
References 36 June 2016 30 Jaune 20106 30 June 2015 34 June 2015
Other comprehensive (expense) / income
Net loss for the period (44.674.610) {39.485.527) (19.855.7117) (17.572.232)

Other comprehensive income
and expenses that may not be
reclassified subsequently
to profit and loss
- Change in foreign currency

differences 19.823 894 (2.871.384)
- Change in cash flow hedge reserve (1.063.479) 1132410

Income tax relating to items that may

be reclassified subsequently

Deferred tax income / (expense) 212.696 (230.482)

Other comprehensive income and

expenses that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss
- Revaluation and remeasurement

eainsg F1.168.797 11.160.797
Income tax relating to items that will

not be reclassified subsequentily

10.709.896

17.406.854

Deferred tax expense (358.040} (558.040) - -
Other comprehensive income after income tax 29.875.868 8.683.301 10.709.896 17.406.854
Total compreliensive expense (15.098.742) (30,752.226) (9.145.821) (165.378)

Allocation of total comprehensive
income [ (expense)

Attributable to non-controiling interests (3.793.512) (13.000.017) (7.782.413%) {3.986.649)
Attributable to cquity holders
ol the parent company (11.305.230) £17.752.209) (1.363.408) 3.821.271

The gccompanying notes form an ntegral part of these consolidated financial statemenis.
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 AND 2015

(Amourts expressed i Turkish Lim CTL™Y unless otherwise indicated )

{Reviewed) {Reviewed)
Current Perfod Prior Petfod
1 Fanuary- 1 Junuary-
Note 30 June 30 June
Relerence 016 1015
CASE FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (4.417.0943 31874974
Net loss Tor the period {(H5M61 {18855 NT
Fosa for the operting activities 43674610 (19.833717)
Adjustrnents to reconcile boss for the period §4.402.478 86.121.255
Adjustments related to depreciation and amonization expenses 15,18 251601495 29 (1726 ()2
Adjustments related to impaizment / {reversal) 53.545.438 39 9901805
Adgustments related 1o impairment / (reversal} of receivables 28 BSTETE 4628 147
Adsusiments related 1o provision lor
impairment of inventoties 12 1.528.440 24098 G16
Adjustments refated 1o provision for
irapanment of imengible asset 41718200 3427371
Adjustments related 1o increase in value of investment propenty 14 {3631 570} {ROB 130
Adustments related to provisions (4970377 4 44627
Adpustiments reluted to (reversal) of
provision (o employment benefits 14,30 T334 4. 339,090
Adjustments refated to lewsuit /7 (reversal) of provision lor Iawsuit 18, 28 {83013 744) 32700
Adpmiments related 10 other provisions / {reversals) 1.309.043 (387.763)
Adjustments relited o dividend (income) 7 expense {307 709) {1148 987)
Adjustments related 1o interest expense 16,324 568 3445251
Adjustments related to inlerest income 27 {1.247 084 {1.682915)
Adjustments related o interest expense 3 19360602 8622 (41
Unearned finance income dug 1o lerm purchases 8 (163 T4 202N
Finunce income due from term sales a7 {3788 331 (4 484.5013
Unearned finance income due 1o 1 sales 27 2165.525 1.012.868
Unrealized foreign exchange (income) 7 expense due from barmowings {2428.815) 6.928 384
Adiustmernts relnted to falr value fosses LO58.003 -
Adjustments related to loss / {pain) on fulr
vadue of derivative instruments B 1038093 -
Adposiments related 10 retained eamings of
mwestments velued by equity method 588.368 659 819
Adyustments related to retarned carmings of subsidieries 13 588.368 634919
Adjusiments relted to tax (income) / expense 32 {7.130.450) 1564 003
Ornher adjusiments related to nonessh tems - TH0762
Adiustrmems related to {gair) / logs on dsposal of
cument asset 84T 480 489
Adjusiments related to (gain) ¢ loss on disposal of
propenty, plant and equipment 25,50 (9.847) 480482
Other adjustments relsted to property, plant and equipment 15 2472264 -
Changes in working caplial (43.656.436) (28.343.685)
Adjumimients related o {inorease) ¢ decrense in wade receivables (63.087.103) (26243427
{Incrense) / decrease in wade receivables from related parties {11800 487y {23845
(Incrense) / decrense in trade receivables from third parties {51 294 616) {23364 970
Adnzments refated Lo Gnerease) £ decrease In inventories {3.227.49% 433 741
[norease in prepasd expenses (891.748) {1778.149%)
Adjustments related to (increase} 7 decrease in trade payehles 15 907 839 (70560465
Diecrense i trade payabies 1o related panties 13771387 {2 BB BT
Increase / (decresse} in trade payables to thurd paries 21185236 (4236167}
Incresse in payables related 1o emplovee benefits 1 2958201 Joisen
Increase in deferred income 11.973.508 G175
Adjustrnents related 1o other incrense 7 (decrease] in warking capital {HRESR635) 2675339
Drecrease in other assais mlated 1 operating activities 38063 1763213
{Decrease} f increase in other Habilities related 1o operating sctivities {16.608.398) PR

The accompanying notes form an integrad part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 AND 2015

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira "TL"} unless otherwise mdicated.)

{Reviewed) {Reviewed)
Current Peviod Prior Pertod
1 Famuary- 1 January-
Note 30 June 30 Fune
Refesenee 2016 2015
Cash generated from operations (3.328.614) 37.921.653
Employment benefits paid 18,20 {3608 335) (5071015
Texes refums 7 {paymients) 32 531459 {2 816.050
Collzctions from doubtful receivables 5 1 988 640 1.840.187
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 213971558 £.956.311
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary resulting in foss of control a5 « 2.826,129
Cash inflows from sale of tangible and intangibie nssets 1.612.539 G.652.060
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 5 LG123359 6432060
Cash outflows from purchase of tangible and intangible msets (8143321 (9 B EI3}
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 13 (3703679 {2.664.859)
Purchases of intangible assets 16 (4439647 (7 225.964)
Dividends received 29 167281 B
Interests received 8. 750,656 G710
CASH FLOWS FROM FENANCING ACTIVITIES {(35.343.114) (45.933.517)
Cash inflows from borrowing §3.905 634 53245182
Benk borrowings walized $3.963.639 53.248.182
Cash outflow refated to payments of debt (121 718.939) (L 105.951)
Bank borrowings paid (12L718.039) (37.890.577)
Changes in financial habilities 1o suppliers B 220584
Cash intlows rom funds imnstermed 1o equity by shamhelders - 6280371
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests {61145y [ RN
Interests paid 31 {1756} 436} (8 036.268)
Chenges in blocked deposit § 32767 {36510
NETDECREASE BV CASH AND CASE EQUIVALENTS
BEFORE THE EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES (57.363.053) {11.302.232)
Effecis of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 33537 (4435087
NETDECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {57.667.675) (15.757.269)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE 8EGINNING OF THE PERIOD E] BGYRT A0 S6.604.647
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 5 209719148 40.847.378

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amountis expressed in Turkish Lim (“TL"Y unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 1 - ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Harriyet Gazetecilik ve Matbaacihk A.S. (“Hiirrivet” or the “Company™) was established in 1960 and
is registered in Turkey. The Company which undertakes journalism, printing, advertising and internet
publishing activities operates seven printing plants in Turkey with locations in istanbul, Ankara, [zmir,
Adana, Antalya, Trabzon and Germany.

Dogan Sirketler Grubu Holding A.$. ("Dogan Holding™) is the majority ownership in the Company.
Aydin Dogan and Dogan Family (Is1 Dogan, Arzuhan Yalgindag, Vuslat Sabanci, Hanzade V. Dojan
Boyner and Y. Begiimhan Dogan Faralyalt) are ultimate shareholders of the Company.

As of 30 June 2016, the Group’s average personnel number is 2,242 (31 December 2013 2.3706).

The address of the registered office is as follows:

100. Y1l Mahallesi, Matbaacilar Caddesi No:78
34204 Bagelar/Istanbul
Turkey

The Company 1s regisiered o the Capital Markets Board (“CMB™) and its shares have been quoted on
the Borsa Istanbul A.S (“BIAS or “Borsa™ or “BIST” } since 25 February 1992. In accordance with the
resolution numbered 21/635 on 23 July 2010 of CMB; according to the records of Central Registry
Agency (CRA); shares representing 22,34 % as of 30 June 2016 (31 December 2015: 22.31%) of
Hiirriyet are accepted as “in circulation”. As of 16 August 2016 shares rate is 22,34 % (Note 23).

Subsidiarics
The name of the Company’s subsidiaries (“Subsidiaries™), the nature of the business and geographic
scements are as follows:

Registered Geogruphic

Subsidiaries COURtTY segmient Nature of business
Yenibiriy fnsan Kaynakian Hizmetleri

Damgmantik ve Yaymeilik AS. (“Yenibirig™ Turkay Turkey Internet publishing
Glokal Dijital Hizmetter Pazerlams ve Ticaret A5, (“Glokal™y Turkey Turkey Internet publishing
Hurriyet Zweigniederlossung GmbH. (“Hémiyet Zweigniederlassung™  Germany Europe MNewspaper publishing
Harriyet Invest B.V, (“Hiiryel Invest™) Holland Europe Investment
Trader Media East (“TME™) Jersey Europe [nvestment
TCM Adria do.o, Crotia Europe fnvestment
Mirabridpe International BV, Holland Europe Investment
ZAO Pronlo Akzhol Kazakhstan Russia and EE  Newspaper and infernet publishing
TOOG Pronto Akmola Kazaklistan Russia and EE Newspaper and internet publishing
00 Pronto Atyrau Eazakhstan Russie and EE  Newspaper and internet publishing
OO0 Prono Aktobe Kazukhstan Rassia and EF. Newspaper and internet publishing
000 Pronto Aktau Kazakhston Russia and EE  Newspaper and inlernet publishing
QOO0 Pronto Baikal Russia Russia and EE Newspaper and internet publishing
OGO Pronto Kuzan Russia Russiz and EE - Newspaper and intemed publishing
OG0 Pronto Movosibirsk Russin Russta and EE Newspaper and intemet publishing
OO0 Pronto Oka Russia Russia and EE Newspaper and intermel publishing
QOC Utro Peterburga Russia Russia and EE Newspaper and infernet publishing
GO0 Pronte Samara Russia Russia and EE Newspaper and internet publishing

9



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amousnts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.y

NOTE 1 - ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

Registered Geographic
Subsidiaries

countyy segment Nisture of business
OO0 Pronto Smolensk Russia Russia 2nd EL Newspaper and intemnet publishing
OGO Rukom Russis Russia and EE Internct publishing
QGO Prente Viadivostok Russis Russin and TE  Newspaper and internet publishing
Q00 Pronto Media Holding Russia Russia and FE  Newspaper and internet publishing
OO0 Rekteentr Russia Russia and EE Newspaper and infernet publishing
Pablishing House Pennsylvania Inc, LSA Russiz and EE Investment
OO0 5P Belprontoe Belarus Russia and FE Newspaper and fnternet publishing
Pronto Ust Kamenogorsk Razakhstan Russiaz and EE Wewspaper publishing
Publishing International Holding BY Holland Europe Investment
1D Impress Media Marketing LLC Russta Russia and EE Publishing
Associates

Associates of the Company, registered countries, nature of businesses, geographic segments arc as
follows:

Registered Geographic
Associates country segment Nature of business
ASPM Holding BV, (“ASPM™) iloiland Europe Envesiment

Joint Ventures

Joint Ventures of the Company, registered countries, nature of businesses, geographic segmenis are as
follows:

Registered Geographic
Juint Venture country sepment Nature of business
Dogan Media International GmbH (“Dogan Media™} Germany Europe Wewspaper publishing

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1 Basis of presentation
2.1.1 Financial reporting standards

Statement of Compliance in TAS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the requiremenis
of Capital Markets Board (“CMB™) Communiqué Serial I1, No: 14.1 “Basis of Financial Reporting in
Capital Markets™, which were published in the Official Gazetie No: 28676 on 13 hune 2013, The
accompanymg financial stalements are prepared based on the Turkish Accounting Standards (“TAS™)
and the related supplement and interpretations that have been put into effect by the Public Oversight
Accounting and Auditing Standards Autherity ("POA™) under Article 5 of the Communiqué.

1o



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL") unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.1 Basis of presentation (Continued)

Statement of Compliance in TAS (Continued)

2.1.1 Financial reporting standards (Continued)

Adustment to the financial statements in hvperinflationary periods

With the decision taken on 17 March 2005, the CMB announced that, effective from 1 January 2003,
the application of inflation accounting is no longer required for companics operating in Turkey and
preparing their financial statements in accordance with CMB Financial Reporting Standards.
Accordingly, TAS 29, “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies™ (“TAS 29™), issued by

the TASB, has not been applied in the (inancial statements for the accounting year commencing
1 January 2003,

The Group maintain their books of account and prepare their statutory financial statements in TL in

accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC™), tax legislation and the Uniform Chart of
Accounts issued by the Ministry of Finance,

These consolidated financial stalements are based on the statutory records, which are maintained under
historical cost conversion except investment properties and derivative instruments, with the required

adjustments and reclassifications reflected for the purpose of fair presentation in accordance with the
Turkish Accounting Standarts.

2.1.2 Financial statements of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures operating in foreign
countries

Financial statements of subsidiarics, associales and joint ventures that are operating in forcign countries
are prepared in accordance with applicable faws and regulations in countrics in which they are registered

and required adjustments and reclassifications are reflected for the purpose of {air presentation in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

I the Group companies” functional currency is different from its presentation currency, the functional
currency is translated into the presentation currency as follows:

" Assets and liabilities for cach balance sheel presented are translated at the closing rate at the date

of that balance sheet.

Income and expenses for each income statement are translaled at average exchange rates; and all
resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity and statements
of comprehensive income (currency translation reserve).

When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange difTerences recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale. Goodwill and fair value

adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
forcign entity and translated at the closing rate.

2,1.3 Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the parent company, Hirriyet, its
Subsidiaries and its Joint Ventures (collectively referred as the “Group™) on the basis set out in
sections (a) to (d) below. The {inancial statements of the companics included in the consolidation are
based on historical cost of the statutory records and for the purpose of fair presentation in accordance
with the accounting policies described in Note 2.1.1 and Note 2.1.2 and application of uniform
gccounting policies and presentations; adjustments and reclassifications. Financial statements of
consolidated entities are prepared in accordance with the TAS,

|3



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 36 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed i Turkish Lira (*TL™) enless oherwise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of presentation (Continued)

2,13 Consolidation principles (Continued)

Subsidiarics and joint ventures acquired or disposed of during the accounting period are included in the
consolidation from the date at which the control of operations are transferred to the Group and excluded
from the consolidation when the control is lost. Even if non-comtrolling inferesis result in a deficit
balance, total comprehensive income is attributed o the owners and to the non-controlling interests.

Income and expenses of a subsidiary, acquired or disposed of the during the vear are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Company

gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are summarized as
below:

{a} Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements wncorporate the financial statements of the Company and cntities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee
. is exposed, or has rights, lo variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power 1o affect s returns.

The company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to at least one of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majonity of the voting righls of an invesiee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all the relevant lacts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient lo give it power,
including:

. The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

. Potential voting rights held by the Company, over vote holders or other parties;

. Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

. Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the

current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous sharcholders’ meetings.

Profit or loss and cach component of other comprehensive income are attributed io the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive imcome of subsidiaries is
attributed o the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controtling interests having a deficit balance.

12



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ¢*TL™) unless otherwise indicated. )

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)
2.1 Basis of presentation (Continued)
2.1.3 Consolidation principles (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The balance sheets and the statements of profit or loss of the subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-
by-line basis and the carrying value of the investment held by the Company and its subsidiaries is
eliminated against the related cquity. Inlercompany transactions and balances between the Company
and its subsidiaries are climinated on consolidation. The dividends ariging from shares held by Dopan
Holding in its subsidiaries are eliminated from equity and income for the period. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the accounting policies in the financial stalements of subsidiaries in order to
comply with the Group’s accounling policies.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrving amount of the assels (including
goodwill), and habilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation (o that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or habilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of cquity as specified/permitted by applicable TAS).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is losl is
regarded as the fair value on mnitial recognition for subsequent accounting under TAS 39 “Financial
mnstruments: recognition and measurement”, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture,

The Subsidiaries and their effective ownership interests at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015 asc as
follows:

Proportion of voting power held

by Hiirriyet and its Effective ownership
Subsidiaries (%) inferests (%)

30.June 31 Becember 30 June 31 December
Subsidiaries 2016 2015 2016 2018
Yenibiris AS. 100,60 100,60 100,00 100,00
Glokal @ 160,00 - 100,00 -
Hitrriyet Zweigniederlassung 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Hirriyet Invest 16000 100,00 109,00 100,00
T™E 78,57 78,57 78,57 78,57
ID Impress Media Marketing LLC 91.00 51,60 71,50 75130
TCM Adria do.o. 100,00 160,66 78,57 78,57
Mirabridge Imernational BV, 100,00 100,80 78,57 78,57
ZAO Pronto Akzhol 80,00 80,00 62.86 62,86
TOO Pronto Akmola 106,00 130,00 78,57 78.57
000 Pronte Atyrau 86,00 80,00 62,86 62,86
OO0 Pronto Aktabe 64,00 6,00 50,28 50,28
OO0 Pronto Aktau 80,00 83,00 62,86 (2,86
000 Pronto Baikal @ 100,00 160,06 78.57 78,57
000 Prento DV & - 100,00 - 78.57
(0O Pronto Kazan @ 7260 72,00 56,57 78,57



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed i Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)

2.1 Basts of presentation {Continued)
2.1.3 Consolidation principles (Continued)
(a} Subsidiaries (Continued)

Proportion of voting power held

by Hiirriyet and its Effeetive ownership
Subsidizries (%) interests (%)

30 .June 31 December 36 June 31 December
Subsidiaries 2016 2015 2046 2015
OO0 Pronto Novesibirsk & 166,00 100,00 78,57 78,57
000 Pronto Oka © 160,00 100,00 78,37 78,37
Q00 Utro Peterburga @ 33,00 55,00 4321 43721
OGO Pronto Samarm 100,60 160,00 78,57 78,57
Q00 Pronto Smelensk @ 100,00 160.00 78,57 74,57
000 Rukom ® 100,00 100,00 78.57 78,37
OO0 Pronio Viadivostok 93 20,00 90,00 70,711 70,71
000 Pronto Media Holding 100,00 100,00 78.57 78.57
LLC Pronto Soft 40 - 90,00 - 70,71
000 5P Belpronto 60,00 60,00 47,14 47,14
000 Rekieentr 100,00 100,00 78,57 78,57
Publishing House Pennsyivania Ine 160,06 100,00 78,57 78,57
Pronto Ust Kamenogorsk 80,060 80,00 62,86 62,86
Publishing Intemationai Holding BV 166,00 100,00 78.57 78.57
Impress Media Marketing LLC 4P - 91,00 . 71,30

(1} The subsidiary was established on 26 May 2016.

(2} The subsidiary is in the process of liquidation as of 5 October 2015
(3 The subsidiary bas been liguidated as of June 2016,

{4y The subsidiary is in the process of liquidation as of November 2015,
(5}  The subsidiary is in the process of liquidation 45 of 27 May 2015,
{6)  Subsidiaries ceased ils operations belore 2010

{7y The subsidiary is in the process of liquidation as of 19 May 2015
(8)  The subsidiary ceased its operations in 2012.

(9 The subsidiary is in the process of liquidation as of 10 November 2015,
(10} The subsidiary has been Rquidated as of February 20146,

(11} The subsidiary has been disposed as of March 2016.

(b) Investments in associates and joint ventures

Joint ventures are the entitics where Hiirrivet and its subsidiaries together with one or more parties are
subject o joint control and undertake an economic operation through an agreement. Joint ventures
were consolidated using the proportional counsolidation method until 31 December 2012, In
accordance with the amendments to TFRS 11 effective from 1 January 2013, joint ventures arc

recognized under the equity method starting from this date.

An associale 15 an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power 1o participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or

Jjoint control over those policies.

14



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unfess otherwise indicated )

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.1 Basis of presentation (Continued)

2.1.3 Consolidation principles (Continued)

(b) Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilitics of associales or joint ventures arc incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereal, is classified as held [or sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
TFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thercaflter to recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associale or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net mvestment in the
associale or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture (Note 13).

Subsisidaries and business combinations’ operational results, assets and liabilities are recognized by
using equily pick up method in consolidated financial statements.

(¢) Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests of sharcholders over the net assets and operational results of subsidiaries are

classified as “non-controlling interest” in the consolidated balance sheet and statement of profit or
loss.

{d) Financial investments

Financial investments in which the Group and its subsidiaries, have less than 20%, or more than 20%
direct or indirect participation but the Group has no significant influence over the related assets, or
which arc immalenial to consolidated financial statements are classificd as available for sale financial
assets, Available for sale financial assets that do nol have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be measured reliably are carried at cost less any allowance for impairment

{Note 6).
2.1.4 Offsetting

All Hems, significant in terms of content and amount, are stated separately in the consolidated
financial statements even if they bear the same characteristics. Insignificant amounts or items
displaving similar characteristics arc stated collectively.

2.1.5 Comparative information and restatement of prior period financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared comparatively with the previous period
to identify the financial position and performance trends. In the current period, in case of a necessity,
prior period financial siatements are reclassified in order to comply with the presentation of its current
period consolidated financial statements and significant changes are explained. The Group has decided to
mcrease capital by way of offsetting its receivables due from subsidiaries in the interim period ended 30
June 2016. Therefore recognized foreign exchange expenses amounting to TL 13.815.766 in profit or

loss statement in the first interim period f{or three month has been classified under equity. Classification
amounts are described below:
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (*TL"} unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)

2.1 Basis of presentation (Continued)

2.1.5 Comparative information and restatement of prior period financial statements (Continued)
e For the interim period ended 31 March 2016, Group has presented its “Foreign exchange

incomes™ amounting to TL 520,131 in other incomes {rom operating activities in profit or loss

table. In the current period, Group management classified aforementioned foreign exchange
incomes under “Currency Translation Dillerences”™

e For the mterim period ended 31 March 2016, Group has presented Hs “Foreign exchange
expenses” amounting to TL 10.818.976 in other expenses from operating activities in profit or
loss table. In the current period, Group management classified aforementioned {foreign exchange
expenses under “Currency Translation Differences™.

e For the interim period ended 31 March 2016, Group has presented its “Foreign exchange
expenses” amounting to TL 5.616.921 in financial expenses in profit or loss table. In the current

period, Group management classified aforementioned foreign exchange expenses under
“Currency Translation Differences™.

2.1.6 Application of new and revised international financial reporting standards

a)  Ameadments to Standarts affecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in the financial
statements
None.

by  New and Revised Standarts applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements

Amendments 1o TAS 16 and TAS 38 | Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and

Amortisation '’

Amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 41 | Agriculture: Bearer Plants

and amendments to TAS 1, TAS 17,

TAS 23, TAS 36 and TAS 40

Amendments to TFRS 11 and TFRS | | Acconnting for Acquisition of Interests in Joint operations !
Annual Improvements to 2011-2013

Cycle TIRS 1

Amendments to TAS | Disclosure Initiative

Annual Improvements to 2012-2014

Cycle TFRS 5, TFRS 7, TAS 34, T4S 19

Amendments to TAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements *

Amendments to TFRS 10 and TAS 28 | Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture *

Amendments to TFRS 10, TFRS 12 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception *
and TAS 28

TFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts *

! Effective for snnual periods beginning on or after 31 December 2015
* Effective for anaual periods begianing on o after 1 January 2016,

(c) New and revised TFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised TAS that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

TERS 4 Financial Instruments
Amendments to TFRS 9 and TFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of TFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

The Group evaluates the effects of these standards, amendments and improvements on the consolidated
financial statements.
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts expressed i Turkish Lira *TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.2.1 Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related (o the entity that is preparing its financial statements,
a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

1. has control or joint control over the reporiing entiy;

i, has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

iil. 15 a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the
reporting entity,

(b) An entity is related Lo a reporting entity i any of the following conditions applics:

1. The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that cach
pareni, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related (o the others),

ii. Onc entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {(or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is a member),

i, Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

iv. One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associale of the third
entity.

v. The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benelit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a
plan, the sponsaring emplovers are also related to the reporting entity.

vi.  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identilfied in (a).

vil. A person identified in (a)(1) has significant influence over the entily or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the entily).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

For the purpose of accompanying consolidated [inancial stalements, related partics are referred to as
legal entities in which Dogan Holding directly or indirectly has participation, including any entities
under joint control; real persons and/or legal entitics that have direct or indirect control or joint
confrolover the Company and their close family members (immediate family members) and legal
entities having direct or indirect control or joint control by them and Iegal entities having significant
effect over the Company or their key management personnel; Company’s afliliates, subsidiaries and
members of the BOD, key management and their close family members (immediaie family members)

and real persons and/or legal entitics that are directly or indirectly controlled individually or jointly
(Note 34).
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lim (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(Continued)
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policics (Continued)
2.2,2 Financial assets

In accordance with TAS 39, the Group classilies its financial instruments as “available-for-sale™ and
“loans and receivables™. All financial asseis are recognised at cost including transaction costs in the
initial measurement.

Financial assets classified by the Group as “available for sale financial assets™ that do not have any
control power or significant effect have no fair value. When fair value cannot be reliably measured as
other fair value estimation methods are not apphcable; the carrying value of the financial asset is
measured at cost less any mpairment loss (Note 6).

“Loans and reccivables™ are financial assets that have fixed or determinable pavments and fixed
maturity dates and non-derivative financial assets that are not quoted in an active market.

2.2.3 Trade receivables and prevision for doubtful receivables

Trade receivables, formed as a result of provided goods or services by the Group, are presented after
setting of with unacerued finance income. Afler netting of (rade receivables with unaccrued (inance
income, remaining trade receivable balance is discounted by using the effective interest rate in the
subsequent period m which the original invoice s issued. Shorl-lerm trade receivables with

undetermined interest rale are presented at cost value when the original effective interest rate effect is
msignificant (Note 9).

Provision 15 allocated for receivables when the Group has an objective indication over the
collectability, The Group also sel aliowance for the reccivables which are overdue for more than one
year unless there is no guaraniee and collaterals taken or special agreement. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount 1s the present value of all cash {lows, including amounts recoverable from guaraniees and
collaterals discounted based on using the original effective interest rate of the trade receivable
occurred. The management cvaluates the possibility of reserving provision for doubtful receivables

when the trade receivables are uncollectible and unguaranteed, in legal procecdings or due more than
the regular commercial day terms.

H there is a partial or whole collection aver the doubtful receivable amount subsequent to the allocation
of provision for doubtful receivables, the collected portion is recognised as other income following the
write-down of the total provision amount (Note 27 and 28).
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2.4 Tmpairment of assets excluding goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

At each balance sheet date, the Group cvaluates whether there are any indications that an assel other than
goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives may be impaired. When an indication of
impairmenl exists, carrying value of the assets is compared with the net realizable value which is the
higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. For the purposes of assessing impairment, asscls

are grouped at the lowest Ievels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash penerating
units).

Impairment exists if the carrving value of an assel or a cash generating unit including that assel is greater

than 1ts recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income
(Note 16).

2.2.5 Inventorics

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or estimated selling price less estimated costs necessary (o
make a sale. Cost elements included in inventory are purchase costs and other costs necessary o prepare
the asset for its infended use. Cost elements included in inventories are materials, labor and production
overheads. The unit cost of inventories is determined on the weighted average basis (Note 12),

When the net realizable value of inventory is less than cost, the inventory is written down to the net
rcalizable value and the expense is included in statement of income/(loss) in the period the write-down
or loss occurred. When the circumstances that previously caused inventories to be written down below
cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net realizable value because of
changed economic circumstances, the amount of the write-down is reversed. The reversal amount is
limited to the amount of the original write-down. The management cvaluates the inventory impairment
amount (if any) as of the balance sheet dates.

Promotion materials

Assessment of impairment on promotion materials and determination of impairment amount is carried

out by the Group management. Impairment amount is determined by considering the purchase dates
and rates identified by management.

2.2.6 Investment properties

Land and buildings that are held (o carn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are classified as
investment property. Investment properties are carried at cost less transaction costs. Subseguent 1o
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment propertics
are included in the statement of income in the year which they arise (Note 14).

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment properly is permanently withdrawn from use and no {uture economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognized in the statement of income in the period of retirement or disposal.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies {Continued)
2.2.6 Investment properties (Continued)

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to owner accupied propertly, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is
the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such properly n accordance with the policy stated under property,
plant and equipment up Lo the date of change in use. The difference between fair value and cost value,
as of the date in which the change has occured, is recognized as revaluation fund under other
comprehensive income.

2.2.7 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are carned at cost less aceumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
if any. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of

tangible assels (except {ands) (Note 13).

The depreciation periods for property and equipment, which approximate the economic useful lives of
assels concerned, are as follows:

Land and land improvemennts 8-20 years
Buildings 30-30 years

Machinery and equipment 315 years
Fumniture and fixtures 3-15 vears
Motor vehicles 5 vears
Leaschold improvements 2-20 years

Useful life and depreciation are reviewed regularly and the Group also reviews the consistency of the
useful life and depreciation method applied with the economic benefits to be obtained from the
underlving assets.

Where the carrving amount of an asset i1s greater than s estimated recoverable amount, it 15 written
down immediately to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs 1o sell and its value in use. Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the
sale of an asset less the costs of disposal Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from an asset plus the residual value of the related assets.

Gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment arc determined with respect to the
difference between collections received and carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and are
included in expenses from investment activities account, as appropriate.

Repair and maintenance expenses are charged to the consolidated statement of income as they are
incurred. Capital expenditures that increase the present value of the future cash flows expected to be

derived from property, plant and equipment by increasing ils capacity is added to the cost of tangible
{ixed asset.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2.8 Financial leases

Leases are classified as finance leases by the Group whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the rigks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. Asgsets held under Anance leases are
recognised as assels of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the

present value of the minimum lease payvments. Lease pavments are treated as consisting of capital and
interest,

Principal lease payments arc treated as liabilitics and reduced with their payvments. Interest charges are
charged directly against income statement over the financial lease period. Capilalized leased assets arc
depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset,

2.2.9 Intangible assets

Intangible assels excluding goodwill and assets with infinite uselul lives comprise trade names and
licenses, customer lists, computer software and rights, internet domain names and other intangible
assets. All trade names, customer lists and internet domain names have been identified as a result of
independent valuations performed for the purchase price allocation related with the business
combinations. Uselul lives of certain trade names arc determined {o be indefinite. Assets that have an
indelinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested for impairment annuaily,

Estimated useful lives of the mtangible assels with finite nseful lives are as follows:

Trade names

20} years
Customer lists 9 and 18 years
Computer software and rights 5-15 vears

Domain names 3-20 vears

Other intangible assets 3 vears

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at their acquisition cost and amortised using the
straighi-line method over their estimated uselul lives (Note 16).

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are evaluated for impairment losses and if the book value
exceeds the recoverable value, a provision is reserved to decrease the book value fo recoverable value.
Recoverable amount is considered to be the higher of firture net cash fiows of the intangible asset or

the fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses are recognized immedialely in the consolidated
income stalement.

21



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Semmary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

The Group evaluates whether there are any indications that an asset other than goodwill or infinite life
intangible asscts may be impaired. When an mdication of impairment exists, carrving value of the
assets 15 compared with the net realizable value which is the higher of value in use and [air value lesg
cosis to scll. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-gencrating units). Impairment exists if’ the
carrying value of an asset or a cash generating unit including that asset is greater than its recoverable
amount which is the higher of value in use or fair value less costs to sell.

Web paee development cosls

Costs associated with developing web pages are capitalized and are amortized over their estimated
useful lives (Note 16). Following the planning phase and operation; all cosis are recognized as
expense, Maintenance costs of web pages are accounted as operational expenses.

2.2.10 Goodwill

Goodwill and negative goodwill amount, which represent the difference between the purchase price
and the fair value of the acquiree’s nel assets, arising from business combinations effected prior to 30
June 2004 in the consolidated financial stalements is capitalized and amortized over the uscful life by
using the straight-line method prior to 31 December 2004. Goodwill arising from business
combinations effected subsequent to 31 March 2004 is not amortized and instcad reviewed for any
impairment losses in accordance with TFRS 3 Business Combinations,

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-pencrating
units expecled (o benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired as of the balance sheet dates. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrving amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrving amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of cach assel in the unit. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period (Note 16).

2.2.31 Critical accovnting estimates and judgements

Useful lives of intangible assets

Useful lives of some trademarks are expected to be indefinite by the Group management. Where
nselul life is definite, in case of useful lives of 20 vears, such intangible assels’ amortization would

have mereased by TL 3.441.846 (30 June 2015 TL 4.701.412) and their loss before tax would have
increased by TL 3.441.846 (30 June 2015: TL 4.701 412),

Group amortizes trade names, customer lists and domain names with definite useful hives specified in
Note 2.2.9,
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2.11 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
Useful lives of intangible assets (Continued)

I the uselul hves of tradenames, customer bists and domain names differ from the management’s
estimates by 10%, the effects on the financial stalements would be as follows:

- Had the useful ives been higher by 10%, amortization charges would have decreased by TL

312895 and loss before tax would have decreased by TL 312,895 (30 June 2015 TL 427.401)
or

- Had the uscful lives been lower by 10%, amortization charges would have increased by TL
382.427 and loss belore tax would have increased by TL 382.427 (30 June 2015: TL 522.379).

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group conducted goodwill impairment analysis as of 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2013
according o the details occured as explained betow:

The recoverable amounts of cash gencrating units have been calculated using value in use
model. Value in usc 1s measured based on estimated cash flows aller tax using financial budgets
covering five-year period and EBITDA (profit margin before budgeted interest, taxes, amoriization

and depreciation, impairment charges and other non-operating expenses) expeclations play an
important role in thes calculations,

Discount and EBITDA increase rates for projected cash flows following the five-year period are as
below:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
EBITDA margin rate  Discount rate EBITDA margin rate  Discount rate
(%) (%) (%) (Y0)
TME 40 18.4 40 184

The Group has sct a provision for impairment of goodwill in consolidated financial statements as of 30
hune 2016 m the amount of TL 44.019.751 (31 December 20153: TL 44.962.304) (Nole: 16).
Impairment of goodwill occured because of the changes in the economical position of the Russia and
under budget performance of TME,

If afler-tax discount rate apphed (o cash flow projection on cash generating units 15 1% more than
management’s cstimates, the Group would account an additional provision amounting to TL
15,272,198 (31 Pecember 2015: TL 16.429.252) to its financial statements and net profit belore tax
would deerease by TL 13,272,198 (31 December 2015: TL 16.429.232),

If the cash gencrating units to cash flow projections applied to EBITDA ratio is 5% lower than
management's estimates, the Group would sccount an additional provision amounting to TL
23.231.625 (31 December 2013: TL 19.898.894) to its financial statements and net loss before tax
would increase by TL 23.231.625 (31 December 2015: TL 19.898.894).
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continucd)

2.2.12 Taxes

Taxation on profit or loss includes current period income taxes and deferred taxes. Current vear tax
liability consists of tax liability on period income calculated according to currently enacled tax rates
and tax legislation in force as of balance sheet date and includes adjustments related to previous year’s
tax liabilities. Turkish tax legislation does not permit a parent company, ils subsidiaries and joint
ventures to file a consolidated tax retum. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in the
consolidated financial statements, have been calculated on a separate-entity basis,

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilitics and their carrving values for financial reporting purposes. Deferred
income lax is determined using tax rates that have been cnacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, where deferred tax assels
resulting from deductible temporary differences are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilized (Note 32), Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized il the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax asscts and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current

tax assets against current iax labilities and when they are related (o income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority.

2.2.13 Financial borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subscquently slated at amortized cost using the effective inlerest method. Any
difference between proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement as finance expensc over the period of the borrowings (Note 7).

2.2.14 Employment termination benefits

The Group is required to pay termination benefits to employees who is retired, whose emplovment is
terminated without due causes in Labour Law, in accordance with the Law relaled with The
Arrangement of the Relationships within the Employecs in Press Scctor (emplovees in media sector)
and other laws. The total provision represents the present value of Future probable obligation of the
Group arising from the retirement of its emplovees regarding the actuarial projections (Note 20).

According to the amendment in TAS 19, the Group calculated employment benefit in accordance with
the report prepared by the actearial firm and recognised all actuarial loss and gaing in the other
comprehensive statement of profit or loss as of balance sheet date.

2.2.15 Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation or a result of
past events, it is probable that on outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seltle the obligation, and a reliable cstimate of the amount of the oblization can be made.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Summary of significant accounting palicies (Continued)
2,215 Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities (Continued)

Contingent liabilities arc assessed continually to determine whether an outflow of resources
comprising economic benefits has become probable, 1f it becomes probable that an oulflow of future
cconomic benefits will be required for an item previously dealt with as a contingent hability, a
provision is recognised in the financial statements of the period in which the change in probability
oceurs except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimation can be made.

The Group has disclosed the contingent hability if it becomes probable, but no reliable estimation can
be made on the amounts of resources comprising economic benefits,

Possible assets that arisen [rom past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the Group
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events nol wholly within the contro! of the

treated as contmgenl assets. A contingent assel 15 disclosed where an inflow of economic benefil 18
probable,

When some or all of the economic benefits required o settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably (Note 18).

2,216 Share capital and dividends

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividend income is recognised as income by the Group when
right to obtain of dividend is generated in the consolidated financial statements, Dividend distribution to
the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a Hability in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
in the period i which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders (Note 23),

2.2.17 Forcign currency transactions

Functional currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the ciurency
that best reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to that

entity. The consolidated financial stalements are presented in Turkish Lira, which is the functional
currency of the Company.

Foreign currency {ransactions and balances

Income and expenses arising in foreign currencies have been translated into TL at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies have been translated into TL at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet dates.
Exchange gains or losses ansing from the settlement and translation of foreign currency items have
been included in the consolidated statement of income.

The resulls of Group undertakings using a measurement currency other (han TL are first translated into
TL by using the average exchange rate for the period. The assels and liabilities of such Group
undertakings are translated into TL by using the closing rate at the balance sheet date. Differences
arising on retranslation of the opening net assets of such Group undertakings and differences between
the average and period-end rates are included in currency translation reserve in the equity.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2.17 Fereign currency transactions (Continued)

Farelpn currency transactions and balances (Continned)

Income and expenses arising in foreign currencics have been translated into TL at the exchange rates
prevailing at the transaction date. Monetary assels and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencics
have been translated into TL at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet dates. Exchange
gains or losses arising from the settlement and translation of foreign currency items have been
included 1n the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A significant portion of the Group’s foreign operations are performed in Russia, Europe and Eastern

Europe countries (Note 4). Foreign carrencies and exchange rates at 30 June 2016 and 31 December
2015 are summarized below:

Country Currency 36 Junce 2016 31 December 2015
Russia Ruble 0,0448 (,0396
Eurpzone Euro 3,2044 3,1776
USA US Dollar 2.8936 2,9076
Ukraine Grivna 0,1166 0,1214
Romanmia New Ley 03,7043 0,7055
Kazakhstan Tenge 0,0085 00,0291
Belarus Belarusian Ruble ,0002 0,0002

2.2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s the fair value amount of sales of goods and services recetved or recaivable which s
resulted from Group’s operations. Net sales represent the invoiced vahie of goods/services shipped

less any trade discounts, rcbates or commissions and arc presented with the elimnation of
intercompany balances.

Revenue is mnitially recopnized at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable when it can
be measured rehiably and when there is an inflow of economic benefits. When the arrangement
effectively constitutes a [nancing transaction, the fair value of the consideration is determined by
discounting all fidure receipts using an impuled rate of interest. The interest rate used in discounting,

15 the rate to discount nominal amount of the receivable to the amortised cost of the related goods or
services given.

The difference between the fair value and the nominal amount of the consideration 1s recognized as
financing income on the related periods.

Revenues from adverlisement

Revenues from advertiscment are recognised on an accrual basis based on the time of publishing.
Unpublished part of the advertisement is recorded as delerred revenue in balance sheet.

Revennes from newspaper sales

Revenues from newspaper sales are recognised on a matching principle at the time of delivery of the
newspapers by he distribution company to the vendor at the invoiced values. Provision for newspaper

sales returns is accounted at the time of delivery based on past expericnces and other related
information.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Sumtmary of significant accounting policies {Continued)
2.2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenues (Tfom printing services

Revenues from printing services arise from printing services given to Group companies and third
partics by using Group’s printing facilities. Related income is recognised on an accrual basis at the
time of services given,

Interest income

Interest income 1s recognized on accruals basis in accordance with effective interest vield method,

Rental income

Rental income is recognized on an accrual basis.
Other income

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis,

2.2.19  Barter agreements

The Group provides advertising services in return for advertisement and other products and services.
When goods or services are exchanged or swapped for goods or services which are of a similar nature
and value, the exchange is not regarded as a revenue generating transaction. When goods are sold or
services are rendered in exchange for dissimilar goods or scrvices, the exchange is regarded as a
revenue generating iransaction. Revenuc is measured at the fair value of the goods or services
received, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash eguivalents transferred. If the fair value of the
goods or services received is not measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value of the
goods or services supplicd, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred (Note
19). Barter agrecments is recopnized on an accrual basis.

2.2.20 Loss per share

(Loss) / profit per share disclosed in the consolidated statements of income are determined by dividing

net (loss) / profit for the period by the weighted average number of shares that have been outstanding
during the period concerned.

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares “bonus
shares™ {o existing shareholders from retained carnings (Note 23). For the purpose of carnings per share
computations, such bonus shares issuances are regarded as issued shares. Accordingly the weighted
average number of shares used in carnings per share computations is derived by considering the
retrospective effects of the issuances of the shares (Note 33),

In case of dividend payment, earnings per share are determined on existing number of shares rather
than the weighted average numbers of shares,

2.2.21  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost in the balance sheet. Cash and cash equivalents comprise

cash in hand, bank deposits and highly liquid investments without a significant risk over the change in
their value, whose maturity at ihe time of purchase is threc months or less (Note 3).
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2.22 Subsequent events

Subsequent events and announcements related to el income or even declared after other selective
fmancial information has been publicly announced, include all events that take place between the
balance sheet date and the date when the balance sheet i1s authorised for issue.

In the case that eveats requiring a correclion 10 be made ocour subsequent to the balance sheet date,
the Group makes the necessary corrections to the consolidaled financial statements. In the case that
evenls not requiring a correction {o be made occur subsequent o the balance sheet date, those events
are disclosed in the notes of consolidated financial statement (Note 39).

2.2.23 Reporting of cash flows

In the statement of cash flows, consolidated cash flows during the period are classified under
operating, investing or financing activities.

The cash flows raised from operating activitics mdicate cash flows duc to the Group’s operations.

The cash flows due to investing activities indicate the Group cash flows that are used for and obtained
from investments (investments in assets and linancial investments).

The cash {lows due to linancing activities indicate the cash obtained from finsncial arangements and
used in their repayment.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank deposits and the investments that are readily
convertible into cash and highly hiquid with 3 months or less to maturity (Note 3).

2.2.24 Financial liabilities to non-controlling interests put options

Under the certain terms of acquisition agreements, the Group is committed to acquire the interests
owned by non-controlling sharcholders in consolidated subsidiaries, upon the request of non-
controlling interest holders. Related subsidiaries subjected option agreements has been sold, however
there was controversy between TCM Adria d.o.0, a subsidiary of the Group, which has 70% shares of
Oglasnik d.o.0 and owners of remaining 30% and non controlling interests about put option of non
conirolling interest’shares to TCM Adria d.o.o and/or to the Group. As a resull of the nepotiations
parties agreed that the amount to be paid to non-controlling interests and related amount has been
classificd as a litigation provision in the accompanying financial statements (Note 18},
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Summary of significant accounting pelicies (Continued)
2.2.25 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Assets held for sale arc operations that the Group disposes of or classified as available for sale and
cash flows which can be treated as a part separately from the Group. Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations; is part of single co-ordinaled plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The
Group must evaluate its discontinued operations with the lower of carrying value and fair values less
costs Lo sell (Note 35}

2.2.26 Scgment reporting

The chiel operating decision maker of the Group is the Executive Committee or Management
Committee. Operaling scgments arc reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chicf operating decision-maker. The Group has sclected the geographical segment as
the Group’s primary segment reporting format based on the risks and returns in geographical arcas
reflecting the primary source of the enlerprise’s risks and returns (Note 4).

2.2.27 Derivative instruments and Hedge accounting

In the case of future cash flows being subject to cash flow hedges and related transactions being
effective, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualilied as cash flow hedges is recognized directly in equity whercas the imeffective portion is
recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or an expected forward transaction resuli in the
recognition of an assel or liability. at the initial recognition of this asset or liability the gain or loss
previously recognized under equity related to derivatives are included in the measurement of the initial
amount of the assct or liability. In a hedge accounting that does not result in the recognition of an asset
or liability, the amounts previously recognized under equity are transferred to stalement of profit or
loss m the period in which the hedged item has an effect on profit or loss. The changes in the [air value

of derivatives that do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when il no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Any gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at
that time remains in cquity and is recognized when the forecast transaction is nltimately recognized in
profil or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated
in equity is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

According to valuation studies, changes in the fair value of derivatives at fair value through profit or
loss are included in the statement of comprehensive income (Note 8).

NOTE 3 - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

There are no business combinations as of 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015 regarding to “TFRS 3
Business Combination™.
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NOTE 4 - SEGMENT REPORTING

a) Segmental analysis for the period between 1 January - 30 June 2016:

Russia and

Turkey EE Europe Tatal
Sales 257.967.443 15099116 17.591.649  290.658.208
Cost of sales (-) (140.408.475)  (9.5453.193) (15.784.356) (165.738.024)
Gross operating profit 117.558.968 5.553.923 1.807.293 124.920.184
Marketing cxpenses (-) (60.373.998) (2.033.106) - {(62.407.104)
Losses from investiments
accounted by the equity method (<) (588.368) - - {588.368)
Net segment result 56.596.602 3.520.817 1.80:7.293 61.924.712
General administrative expenses {-) {51.967.903)
Other operating income 28.839.104
Other operaling expenses (-) (24.364.835)
Finance expenses (-) (26.808.513)
Income from investing aclivitics 7.650.666
Expense from investing activities (-) {47.078.289)
Loss before tax (51.805.060)
Tax expenses for the period (3.031.420)
Deferred tax income 10.161.870
Loss for the period {(44.674.610)
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

NOTE 4 - SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

b} Segmental analysis for the period between 1 April — 30 June 2016:

Russia and

Turkey EE Europe Total
Sales 135.586.332 8.421.544 8420889 152428765
Cost of sales (~) (72.010.023)  (3.477.928) (8.016.585)  (83.504.536)
Gross operating profit 63.576.309 2,943,616 404.304 66.924,229
Marketing expenses () (30.518.212)  (1.144.959) - {31.663.160)
L.osses from investments
accounted by the equity method (~) (311.887) - - (311,887
Net segment resuft 32.746.2140 1.798.662 404,304 34,949,176
General administrative expenses (-) {23.593.904)
Other operating income 19.757.701
Other operating expenses (-} (14.476.846)
Finance expenses (-) {18.863.637)
Income from investing activities 6.612.174
Expense from investing activities (+) (47,072 407)
L.oss before tax (42.687.743)
Tax expenses for the period {2.954 917)
Deferred tax mcome 6.237.133
Loss for the period (39,405,527
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed i Turkish Lirs (*TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 4 - SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

¢} Segmental analysis for the period between 1 January — 30 June 2015:

Russia and

Turkey LE Europe Total
Sales 257.879.020 34.034.430 153924739  307.838.209
Cost of sales (~) (135.087.538) (19.853.779) (13.541.465) (168.482.782)
Gross operating profit 122.791.482 14.180.651  2.383.294 139.355.427
Markeling expenses (-) (37.961.843)  (9.619.391) - {07.381.234)
Losses from investments
accounted by the equity method (-) {639.919) - - (639.919)
Net sepment result 64.169.720 4.561.260  2,383.294  71.114.274
General administrative expenses (-) {57.035.836)
Other operating income 35.333.786
Other operating expenses (- (27.134.421)
Finance expenses (-) (8.126.718)
Income from nvesting activities 2.476.005
Expense {rom investing activitics (-) (34.918.894)
Loss before tax {18.291.714)
Tax expenses for the period (8.151.349)
Deferred tax income 6.587.346
L:oss for the period (19.855.717)
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkash Lira C°TL™) unless othierwise indicated.)

NOTE 4 - SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

d) Segmental analysis for the peried between 1 April — 30 June 2015:

Russia and

Turkey EE Europe Total
Sales 137.643.629 18488272  8.020.067 164.151.968
Cost of sales (-) (67.982.603) (10.363.530) (7.271.635) (85.617.768)
Gross operating profit 69.661.026 8.124.742 748.432  78.534.200
Marketing expenses {-) (31.003.850)  (6.233.691) - (37.237.341)
Losses from investments
accounted by the equity method (-) (447,021 - - {447.021)
Net segment result 38.210.155 1.891.051 748,432  40.849.638
General administrative expenses {-) (27.721.284)
Other operating income (6.952.825)
Other operating cxpenses (-) (6.653.872)
Finance expenses (-) 4.678.291
Income from mnvesting activities 1.116.386
Expense from investing activities (-) (34777817
Lass before tax (28.861.483)
Tax expenses for the period (4.234.188)
Deferred tax income 15,323 439
Loss for the period {17.572.232)

33



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lim ("TL™) uniess otherwise indicated )

NOTE 4 - SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

¢} Scgment assets:

30 June 2016

31 December 2015

Turkey 516,285 806 351.345.355
Russia and EE 271.572 877 265385458
Europe 33.842.180 38.147.110
821,701,863 §55.078.123
Unallocated assets 15.996.579 11.703.422
Investments accounied by the equity method 6.206.6590 6.566.893
Total assets per consolidated
tinancial statements 843.904.132 873.348.440

Group’s assets other than segment assets include prepaid taxes (Note 32), VAT rcceivables (Note 22)

and deferred taxes assets (Note 32).

) Segment liabilities:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Turkey 95,406,989 54,160,051
Russia and EE 9.965.444 108.243.241
Europe 9.372.241 2(.700.692
114.744.674 183.103.984

Unatlocated liabilitics 391.100.122

337.025.233

Total liabilities per consolidated

financial statements 505.844,796

526.129.217

Group’s liabilitics other than other segments linbilitics is composed of financial borrowings (Note 7).
derivatives instruments (Note 8), provisions (Note 18), employee termination benefits (Note 20), VAT
pavable (Note 22) and wnused vacation provision (Note 18), current tax liability and deferred tax

fiabilities (Note 32).
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts expressed in Turkssh Lir (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated. )

NOTE 4 - SEGMENT REPORTING (Continucd)

2) Property, plant and cquipment, intangible assets and investment praperty purchases and

depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property purchases:

1 January - 1 Aprit- 1 January - 1 April -

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

2016 2016 2015 2013

Turkey 14.784.427 4,011,781 6.959.358 1.510.193

Russia and EE 1.921.036 903.785 3.505.213 3.314.989

Europe 33,145 11,114 246,053 99.269

Total 16.738.608 4.926.680  16.710.626 4.924.451
Depreciation and amortization charges:

1 January - 1 April - 1 Janwary - 1 April -

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

2016 2016 2015 2015

Turkey 16.379.888 7901919  18.743.087 9.227.909

Russia and EE 7,291,992 3.129.215 8.608.906 4.469.403

Europe 1.488.615 1.108.7065 1.614.009 629.213

Total 25,160,495 12.139.899  29.026.002  14.326.525




HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indieated.)

NOTE 4 - SEGMENT REPORTING (Continucd)

h) Non-cash other cxpenses:

1 January - 30 June 2016

Russia and

Turkey EE Europe Total

Impairment of intangible assels 3038538 44019751 - 47.078.289
Provision for impairment of investment

property (Note 14) 3.631.970 - - 3.631.970

Provision of relirement pay and

unused vacation (Note 18,20) 2.913.530 776.576 - 3.692 106

Provision [or doubtlul receivables (Note 9) 7.820.702 749976 - 8.570.678

Provision of fegal claims (Note 18) 1.309.043 - - 1.309.043
Expenses of held for trading derivative

instruments 1.058.093 - - 1,058.093

Provision of inventory impairment (Note 12) 1.528 440 - - 1.528 440

21.322.316  45.546.303 - 06.868.619

1 January - 30 June 2015
Russia and
Turkey EE Europe Total
Impairment of intangible assels - 34.072.512 - 34072512
Provision of retirement pay and

unused vacation (Note 18.20) 2632182  L707508 - 4,339,690

Provision for doubtful receivables (Note 9,22) 4.028.147 - - 4.028.147

Provision of legal claims (Note 18) 312,760 - - 312,700

Provision of invenlory impairment (Nole 12) 2.498.016 - - 2.498.016

9.671.045 35.780.020 - 45451065
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amaounts expressed in Turkish Liss (“TL") unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 5 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The details of cash and cash cquivalents at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2013 arc as ollows:

30 June 2046 31 December 2015

Cash 2.860.518 275.621
Banks
- time deposits 17.001.962 81.007.641
- demand deposits 10.117.265 5,704,138
Teatal 29.979.745 86.987.420

The Group has blocked deposits amounting to TL 63.534 as of 30 June 2016 (31 December 2013: TL
167.977), and the blocked deposils are represented in other current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statements of cash flows as of 30 June 2016 and
31 December 2015 are as lollows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Cash and banks 29.979 745 86.987.420

Total 29.979.743 86.987.420

The maturity analysis of time deposits 15 as follows:
30 June 2016 31 December 2015

0-1 months 17.001.962 81.007.641
17.001.962 81.007.641

There are no time deposils with vanable interest rales at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 20135, The
gross iderest rate for TL time deposits 1s 10,00% as of 30 June 2016 (31 December 2015: 13,35%).
There are no time deposits with foreign currencies (31 December 2013: 0,23% for US Dollar).
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed mn Furkish Lira (“TL™) uniess otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 6 - FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Financial assets available for sale;

The details of financial assets available for sales as of 30 June 2016 and 31 December 20135 are as
presented below:

Share % 30 Junc 2016 Share % 31 December 2015
Dogan Fakloring

AS. ("Dogan Faktoring™) 3,11 1.029.898 5,11 1.0259.898
Coats Iplik Sanayi A.S. 0.50 257.830 0,50 257.850
Other <1 177.656 <] 105,509
Total 1.465.404 1.393.257

Financial investments are carried at cost less provision for impairment since they are not being traded
i an active markel.

NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The details of financial habilities at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as {ollows:

Short-term borrowings: 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Short-term bank borrowings 63.377.949 55.402.170
63.377.949 55402170

Short term portion of
long-term financial habilities 94.594. 118 198.263 511
Total 157.972.067 253,665.681
Long-term financial liabilitics: 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Long-term bank borrowings 117.648.697 62.343.476
Total 117.648.697 62.343.476
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounis expressed in Turkish Lira (*TL”) unless otherwise indicated.}

NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continucd)
Bank borrowings {Continucd

The repayment schedules of long-term bank borrowings are as follows:

Year 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
2017 61.221916 61.920.264
2018 36.426.781 423212
Fotal 117.648.697 62.343.476

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates at
balance sheet dates are as follows:

Period 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Up to 6 months 271.494.994 315.373.636
6-12 months 4125770 633,521
Total 275.620.764 316.609.157

Carrying valuc of the financial liabilities is considered to approximate their fair value since discount
effect is not significant.

Group borrows loans on fixed and floating interest rates. Distribution of variable and fixed inferest
loans are presented in Note 36.1 (1),

The Group’s bank borrowings with variable interest rate is amounting to TL 32,237,822 as of 30 June
2016 (31 December 2015: TL 41.248.822) (Note 36.1(1)).

NOTE 8 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
Currency dertvative ransactions:

As of balance sheet date, fair value of undue forward exchange agreements that the Group’s required
to perform is as follows.

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Forward transactions 2.121.372 -

Total 2.121.572 -
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (*TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 8 —~ DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS {Continued)
Currency derivative transactions (Continued)

The aforesaid apgrements are related Lo hedge the foreign currency risks and for half of 2016. They are
renewed 1f necessary.

As of 30 June 2016 fair value of derivatives instruments has been estimated as a financial liability is
amount of TL 2.121.5372 (31 December 2013: None). The Group has currency swap transactions
amounted at EUR 5.000.000 and US Dollar 4.947.759 as of 30 June 2016 (31 December 2013: None).
A portion of the Group’s forcign exchange swap transaction involves neccessary forcign currency
amounts translating into TL with a fixed exchange rate related to loan repayment. As of 30 June 2016,

TL 1.038.093 part of total amount, which didn’t meet hedge accounting criteria, has been accounted
under profi or loss statement.

Other portion involves Group’s foreign exchange agreements to sccure cash flows related with
repayment of foreign currency denominated paper purchases. As of 30 June 2016 according to hedge
accounting 1.063.479 TL has been accounted under equity as losses on hedging instruments after the
value of tax effect.

NOTE 9 - TRADE RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLES

Short-term trade recetvables net off of unecarned fnance income at 30 June 2016 and 31 December
2015 are as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Trade receivables 265.753.617 226.971.486
Notes and cheques receivable 2.565.513 2.084.896
Receivables from credit cards 4752436 2.764.704
Income accruals 2.069.622 1.861913
Unearned finance income

due front term sales (2.165.325) {1.639.561)
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (56,439 .778) (30.359.674)
Short-term trade receivables 216.535.885 181.683.764

According to a revocable commitment agrecment signed with Dogan Factoring Hizmetlert A.S | trade
receivables resulting from advertisements, amounting to TL 153.350.299 (31 December 2013 TL
130.206.124) are followed up by Dogan Factoring Hizmetleri A.S. (“Dogan Factoring™). Group has
not transferred the risk of not collecting the above mentioned receivables and has continued to bear in
its balance sheets. These receivables are related to commercial advertisements and some of classified
advertisements. Weighted Average maturity of the Group’s trade receivables followed up by Dogan
Factoring 15 109 days (31 December 2015: 106 davs). The unearned finance income due from term
sales related with the receivables followed np by Dogan Factoring is TL 768.169 (31 Decomber 2015:
TL 811.732) and the componnd interest rate is 12,68% per annum (31 December 2013: 12,68%).
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Li (“TL™) unless etherwise indicated.

NOTE 9 - TRADE RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLES (Continued)

The movements of provision for doubtful receivables are as follows:

2016 2015
1 January (50.359.674) (53.178.972)
Additions during the period (Note 28) (8.570.678) {4.028.147)
Coliections during the period (Note 27) 1.988.640 1.840.187
Disposal of subsidiary (Note 35) - 1.398.192
Currency translation dilferences 301934 (342.310)
30 June {56.439.778) (54.311.050)
Trade payables at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2013 are as follows;
30 June 2016 31 Pecember 2015
Short-term trade pavables 50.454.348 33.240.750
Expense accruals 5.411.428 3.696.166
Unrealized [inancial expenses
due to term purchases (316.920) (276.714)
Total 55.548.850 36,660,202

As of 30 June 2016, average turn over date of Group’s trade payables is 39 days (31 December 2015:
39 days). As of 30 June 2016, unrealized financial expense due to term purchases is TL 316.296 (31
December 2015: TL 216.714) and the compound interest rate 1s 12,68% per ammum (31 December

2015: 12,68 %),

Explanations about the nature and level of risks related to trade receivable and payables are provided

in Note 36,

NOTE 10 - OTHER RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLES

Other short-term receivables at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2013 arc as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2815
Deposits and guaranlees given 450.286 502.824
Due from personnel 380.140 -
Other recervables 88.836 490,857
Total 919.262 993.681

Other long-term receivables at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2013 are as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Deposits and guaranices given 1.462.338 1.444.690
Total 1.462.338 1.444.690




HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{ Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira C"TL™) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 10 - OTHER RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLES (Continued)

(Other short-term payables at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 20135 are as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Taxes pavable 6.982.096 8.030.533
Deposits and guarantees received 560.090 565.225
Other pavables 337,463 -
Total 7.879.649 8.5395.760

Other long-term pavables at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2013 are as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Deposits and guarantees received - 3541335
Due to personnel 157.162 157.160
Total 157.162 698,515

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEEL BENEFIT PAYABLES

Employee benelil payvables as of 30 June 2016 and 31 December 20135 are as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Duc 10 personnel 4984245 2.866.716
Social security premiums 3.975.299 3,154,627
Totai 8.959.544 6.021.343
NOTE 12 - INVENTORIES

34 June 2016 31 PBecember 2615
Raw materials and supplics 9.246.070 8.888.948
Promotion materials @ 1.569.642 $922.225
Finished goods and merchandise 2.243.044 1.785.337
Total 13.0601.756 11.596.510

4 Promotion materials include promotion materials such as books, CDs and DVDs provided to readers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL) ualess otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 12 ~ INVENTORIES (Continued)

Provision {or impairment of promotion inventories, raw malerials and supplics and finished goods and
merchandise goods amounting to TL 9.491.905 (30 June 2015: TL 8.164.208) and their movement
during the period are as follows:

2016 215
1 January {9.421.898) (3.779.170)
Provision for promotion mventories (543.359) (2.317.633)
Reversal of provision for promotion materials 444.021 31.540
Provision for raw materials and supplies (985.081) {180.363)
Reversal of provision for raw malerials and supplies 1.014.412 81,438
30 June (9.491,965) (8.164.208)

Regulation related to promotion policy has been rearranged as of 16 June 2014 with regards to the
arrangement, the nature of promotion materials have been changed and the Group Management have
provided additional provision accordingly. Thus, the Group allocated provision for the promotion
inventories which are no longer in the scale of new regulation.

NOTE 13 - INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED BY THE EQUITY METHOD

As of 30 Junc 2016 and 31 December 2013, the corresponding portion of subsidiaries” and joint
ventures’ current assets, non-current assets, short-ferm and long-term liabilities and sharcholders’
equity, which are consolidated with the equity method in accordance with TFRS 11 are as follows:

30 June 2016

perceniage of shares, directly
or indirectly owned by
Hurriyet and its Subsidiaries

31 December 2015
percentage of shares, direetly
or indirectly owned by
Hurriyet and its Subsidiaries

Subidiaries (Yo} (o)
Dogan Media International GrmbH (“Dogan Media™ 42,42 42,42
30 June 2016 31 December 2015

percentage of shares, directly

or indireetly owned by

Hurriyet and jts Subsidiaries

Joint Ventures (%%}

percentage of shares, directly
or indirectly owned by
Hurriyet and its Subsidiarics
(%)

ASPM Holding BV, 40,07
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Liva (“TL”™) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 13 - INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED BY THE EQUITY METHOD (Continucd)

Profit and loss resulting [rom transactions between the Group Companies and ils subsidiaries are
eliminated with the direct proportion of the ownership percentage. As of 30 June 2016, the Group’s
share of financial stalements which are valued by equity method, are as follows:

Total Tatal Net Net foss

30 June 2016 assets linbilitics assets Net sales for the period
Dogan Media 6.756.272 549582 6,206,690  6.247.862 (588.368)
6.756.272 549.582  6.206.690  6.247.862 {588.368)

The summary of Group’s share of the financial statements of the investments accounted by the equity
method at 31 December 2015 is as follows:

Total Total Net Net loss

31 December 2015 assets liabilitics assets Net sales for the period
Dogan Media 8§.155.344 1.588.449  6.366.895 15.628.819 (583.818)
8.155.344 1,588,449  6.566.895 15.628.819 (583.818)

The investmenis accounted by the equily method as of 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as
follows:

Share Share
(%) 30 June 20106 (%) 31 December 2015
Dogan Media 42,42 6.206.690 42,42 6.566.895
6.206.6949 6.566.895

The summary of Group’s share in the financial statements of the investments accounted by the equity
method at 30 June 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

2016 2015
1 January 6.566.895 9.013.738
Loss from associates (588.368) (659.919)
Currency transiation differences 228.163 9972
30 June 6.206.690 $.363.791




HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounis expressed in Turkish Lira (“T1L”) unless etherwise indicated.}

NOTE 14 - INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The movements in investment property as of 30 June 2016 are as follows:

Fair value: Lands Buildings Total
1 January 65.940.285 20.996.821 86.937.106
Additions " - 8.595.287 8.5935.287
Disposal "/ - (945.122) (945.122)
Change in fair value adjustment 1.365.000 2.266.970 3.631.970
Currency translation difTerences - 317017 517.117
Transfer 7 - 21.500.000 21,500,000
30 Junc 67.305.285 52.931.073 120.236.358
(0

Disposals and additions due from the sale of investment properties occurred via barler agreements.
i - ~ " + -

& Group Management has considered effect of upward currency exchange rates on unit prices of land and
residences, current valuation reports of mvestment properties has received and necessary fair value adjustment
has been accounted.

G The Group classified its building where locate in lzmir Alsancak m investment property in current peried
which was classified as fixed assets prior periods.

The Group’s rent income from investment properties amounted to TL 61.668 as of 30 June 2016 (30
June 2015: TL 36.062). The Group’s direct operating expenses arisitg {rom the investment properties
in the period amounted to TL 116.799 (30 Junc 2015: TL 153.106).

The movements in investment property as of 30 June 20135 are as follows:

Fair value: Lands Buildings Total
1 January 59,592,785 23.324.425 82.917.210
Additions ! . 815.803 815.803
Disposal " - (6.155.693) (6.135.693)
Change in fair value adjustment - 809,132 809.132
30 June 59.592,785 18.793.667 78.386.452
T

Disposals and additions due frem the sale of investment properties occurred via barter agreements.
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

CAmounts expressed i Turkish Lira (“TL7) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 16 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
The cost of trade names and licenses with indefinite useful lives amounted to TL 137.673.848 as of 30
June 2016 (31 December 2015: TL 145.650.818). The utilization period of the assels with indefinite

useful lives is determined based on the stability of the industry, changes in market demands as (o the

products and services provided through assets, contro! period over the assets and legal or similar
restrictions on their utilization,

NOTE 17 - GOVERNMENT GRANTS

None,

NOTE 18 -PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As of 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2013, short lerm provisions are as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Proviston [or unused vacation rights 13.029 447 12.181,762
Provisions for lawsuil and compensation 7.539.963 12.735.687
Total 20.569.410 24.917.449

Y There was conlroversy between TCM Adria d.o.o, a subsidiary of the Group, which has 70% shares of
Oglasnik d.o.0 and owners of remaining 30% and non controlling interests about put option of non controlling
nlerest’shares to TCM Adria d.o.o and/or to the Group as a1 2013, As a result of the negotiations between the
parties, i has been agreed on that the amount to be paid due to non-controlling interests, as of 30 June 2016
related provision amount has been recognized accompanying financial statements amounted to TL 1.881.226.
Amounting TT. 5.658.737 of litigation and compensation provisions are considered as provisions {or other law
suits.

i. Provision for unused vacation rights

Movements of provision for unused vacation rights during the periods ended at 30 hme 2016 and 2015
arc as follows:

2616 2015
1 January (12.181.762) (15.696.372)
Additions during the period (882.754) (1.607.420)
Payments related to provisions 372.076 1.979.357
Sale of subsidiary (Note 35) - 2.246.170
Currency translation differences (537.007) (289.755)
30 June (13.029.447) (13.368.020)




HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 18 -PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

fi. Provision for lavesuit and compensation

The lawsuits against the Group amounted 1o TL 15.069.059 (31 December 2015: TL 19.812.336). The
Group recognises provision related to cases when there is a legal or valid liability resulting from past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and when
a reliable estimation can be made of the amount of the obligation. As a result of these analyses, as of
30 June 2016 the Group has set a provision of TL 7,339,963 for lawsuits (31 December 2013 TL

13.735.687).

As at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2013, the Group's ongoing lawsuits are as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Legal lawsuits 13,065,123 18.330.337
Commercial lawsuits 5.000 5.000
Labor lawsuils 1.998.936 1.476.999
Total 15.069.059 19.812.336

Movements of provision for lawsuils for the periods ending 30 June 2016 and 2013 are as follows:

2016 2045
1 January (12.735.687) (23.673.992)
Currency translation differences (340.544) {1.223374)
Additions during the period (Note 28) {1.309.043) (312.700)
Sale of subsidiaries {Note 35) - 1.881.318
Reversal of provisions 737.587 -
Payments related to provisions 6.107.724 274,785
30 June (7.539.963) (23.253.963)

(¥ 1
)



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lima (*TL") unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 19 - COMMITMENTS

Group’s collaterals/pledge/mortgage (“CPM™) position as of 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015 are

as follows:

A. CPM's given in the name of
its own legal personality
-Collaterals
TL
Euro
-Morigages
Euro
B. Total amount of CPM's given
on behalf of the fully
consolidated companies
~Commitments
TL
US Dollar
Euro
Other
C. Total amount of CPM's given
on behall of third partics for
ordinary course of the business
D. Total amount of other CPM's given
i) Total amount of CPM's given on
behall of the majority shareholder
it) Total amount of CPM's given on
behalf of other group companies
which are not in scope of B and C

TL
US Dollar
Eurp
Other
iti) Total amount of CPM's given on
behalf of third parties which are
notin scope of C

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Forcign TL Foreign TL
Currency  Equivalent Currency  Equivalent
1.586.943 1.586.943 1.604.143 1.604.143
25.000 80.110 25.000 79.440
6300000 20.828.600 6.500.000  20.654.400
§5.000.000  3.811.400 - -
1,062,355 1.062.353 642,135 642,155
10.000 28.936 13.540 39.369

43

intended to meet various financial needs of subsidiaries.

Commitments given regarding to the borrowings obtained for the main operations of the Group, that are



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 3¢ JUNE 2016

{Amounis expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"} unless otherwise indicated,)

NOTE 19 - COMMITMENTS (Continued)
CPM’s given by the Group

There is no CPM’s given for third parties as indicated in the table above except CPM’s given for their
own legal entities. The ratio of other CPM’s given against the Group’s equity is 0% as of 30 Junc 2016
(31 December 2015 (%)

Commitments and contingencies which the Management does not expect significant losses or liabilities
are as follows:

Barter agreements:

The Group, as a common practice in the media sector, enters into barter agreements which involve the
exchange of goods or services without cash collections or payments. As of 30 June 2016, the Group
has a commitment for the publication of advertisements amounting to TL 9.237.039 (31 December
2015: TL 9.425.760) 1 exchange for purchasing goods and services and has an option o purchase
goods and services amounting to TL 16.903.522 (31 December 2015: TL 12.159.564) in exchange of
the goods or services sold.

NOTE 26 - EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION BENEFITS

Provision for employment termination benefits at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as follows:

30 Junc 2016 31 December 2015
Provision for employment termination benefits 42.027.134 42254261

Total 42,027,134 42.254.261

Except the legal requirements other than Turkey in which the Group operates, there are no pension plans
and benefits.

Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Company is required to pay termination benefits {o each emplovee
who has completed one year of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, or who
is called up for military service, dies or retires, The amount payable maximnm equals to one month of
salary 15 TL 4.297,21 (31 December 20135: TL 4.092,33 TL) for each year of service.

On the other hand Group is liable to make payments to personnel who work for a minimum of 3 vears
and whose employment is terminated due to any cause in accordance with the regulations with regards to

Emplovees Employed in the Press Scctor. The maximum payable amount is 30 days’ salary for each vear
ol service.

Employee termination benefits aren’t subject to any funding. The provision has been calculated by
estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Group arising from ihe retirement of
the cmployees. TAS 19 Emplovee Benefits, requires companies to compute their Hahilities by developing
actuarial assnmptions within defined benefit plans,

Lh
iy



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lim (“TL"} unless stherwise indicated.

NOTE 20 - EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION BENEFITS (Continued)

The main actuarial assumptions used in the calculation of the total provision for employment benefits
are as follows:

- In calculation, the discount rate, inflation rate and real wage increase rate arc regarded as 10,72%"
(31 December 2015: 10,72%), 5.90% (31 December 2015: 5,90%)

- Retirement age is regarded as the carlicst age at which cach emplovee can retire.

(1) The discount rate used in the caloulation of severance pay delermined as 10,72 which is fong lerm povernment bond’s compound
inferest rafe,
{2 Inflation and salary increase rate used in severance pay determined as 265,50 which is 24-month inflation forecast of the Central
Bank of Turkey.
The movements in provision for employment termination benefils during the periods ended at 30 June
2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015
1 January {42.254.261) {46.429.651)
Service cost during the peried (1.141.570) (1.386.890)
Net interest expense due to
the defined benefit obligation (1.667.782) (1.345380)
Payments and reversal of provisions
during the period 3.036.479 3.091.659
Disposal of subsidiary (Note 33) - 5.964.030
30 Junce (42.027.134) (40.166.232)

Total costs resulting from emplovee termination benefits with the exception actuarial losses have been
inchided 1in the consolidated statement of income as of 30 June 2016.

For the period ended total expense of amounting TL 1.786.943 (2015: TL 1.349.499) TL 550.330
(2015: TL 722.241) and TL 471,879 (2015: TL 440.330) respectively is added to cost of sales, general
administrive expenses and marketling expenses.

[
L



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated. )

NOTE 21 - PREPAID EXPENSES

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Prepaid expenses 3.617.763 2.726.015
Total 3.617.763 2.726.015
Prepaid expenses are mostly composed of the prepaid rents and insurance expenscs,

36 Junc 2016 31 December 2015
Deferred revenue 7.503.166 -
Deferred mcome (*) 5.896.888 3.5390.682
Total 13.400.054 5.590.682

“IDeferred income amounting to TL 5.896.888 is regarding with services provided as subscripiton and
they will be recognize as revenue immidiately when they are used (31 December 2013: 5.390.682).

NOTE 22 - OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Other Current Assets

Other current assets at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 20135 arc as {ollows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Advances given (o personnel 2.797.693 2.189.585
Value added tax ("VAT") receivables 315.772 325.651
Job advances - 402.444
Advances given - 254,743
Blocked deposits 63.534 152.089
Other 725.699 7538.137
Total 4,104,700 4.082.649

Other Non-Current Assets

Other non-current assets at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2013 are as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2013
Prepaid expenses 1.133.005 1.147.125
Blocked deposit 16.022 15.888
Total 1.149.027 1.163.013

Other Short-Term Liabilities

Other short-term liabilitics at 30 Junc 2016 and 31 December 2013 arc as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Advances received 1.623.308 1.369.845
VAT payable - 703.639
Other 410.909 49,708
Total 2.036.217 2.123.192
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(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (*TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 23 - EQUITY

The Company adopted the registered share capital system and sel a ceiling on its registered share capital
representing registered type shares with a nominal value of TL 1. There are no privileged sharcs. The

Company’s historical anthonsed and paid-in share capital at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2013 are as
follows:

30 Jane 2016 31 December 2015
Registered share capital 800,000,000 800.000.600
Paid-in share capital 552.000.000 532.000.000

Companies in Turkey may exceed the hm# for registered share capital in case of issuance of {ree capital
shares {o existing sharcholders.

Aydin Dofian and Dogan family (isil Dogan, Armuhan Yalgindag, Vuslat Sabanci, Hanzade V. Dogan
Boyner and Y. Begiimhan Dogan Faralyalt) are the ultimate parent of the Company.

Share Share
Sharcholders 30 June 2016 (%) 31 December 2015 {%a)
Dogan Holding @ 428.616.468 77,65 428.616.468 77.65
Other sharcholders
(BIAS and other shareholders) 123.383.532 22,35 123,383,532 22.33
Issued share capitad 552.000.600 100,00 552,000,000 100,00
Adijustment to share capital 77.198.813 77.198.813
Total 629,198,813 100,00 629.198.813 100,00

In accordance with the Capilal Markets Board’s (the “CMB™) Resolution No: 217653 ssued on 23 July
2010, it 15 regarded that 22, 34% of the shares as of 30 June 2016 (31 Decomber 2015: 22 31%). Shares
in circulation rate is %2234 as of reporting date.

Adjustment to share capital represents the difference between balances which restatement effect of

cash contributions to share capital equivalent purchasing power and balance before the inflation
adjustment calculated.

Premium on shares

The share premium of pullic offering represents the difference between with the nominal amount and
the sales amount.
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NOTE 23 - EQUITY (Continued)

Restricted reserves

Restricted reserves arc reserves which are reserved [rom profit of previous peried for particular purposes
(for instance, to advantage from sales of investment in associales) except dividend distribution or any
purposcs for necessity of law and agreement.

The legal reserves are appropriated out in accordance with the Article 519 of Turkish Commercial
Code (TCC) and are used according to the procedures specified in this Article. Related amounts have
to be classified in “Restricted Reserves™ in accordance with the CMB Financial Reporting Standards.

In accordance with the CMB Financial Reporting Standards, Company’s restricted reserves amounting
to TL 187.166.210 as of 30 June 2016 (31 December 2013: TL 187.166.210 TL) consist of legal
reserves and gain on sales of real estate.

Restricted reserves 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Composition restricted reserves 39.284.095 39.284.095
Gain on sales of real estate 147.517.827 147.517.827
Gain on sale of subsidiary 364.288 364.288
Total 187.166.210 187.166.210

&7 With the decision taken by the Group management, the real estate profit with the amount of TL 196.690.436

occurred n statulory records in 2012 from the sale of lands located in Gaziemir and Esenyurt amouniing to
TL 147.517.827 that benefits from the exemption (75%) referred to in Article 5-1/¢ of the Corporate Tax Law
will not be involved in allocation of profits for periods 1 January 2012 - 31 December 2012 in compliance
with the Tax Legislation, Capital Market Legislation and any other fiscal legislations, and will be deposited
m a special fund account in liabilities.

Accumulated other comprehensive (expenses) / income that will not be reclassified in profit and loss

Other comprehensive expenses occurred from the losses based on revaluation and measurement and
which are not to be reclassificd in profit or loss, are related with the defined bencfit plans and
summarized below.

30 Junc 2816 31 December 2015
Revaluation and remeasurement gains 11.347.821 1.024.513
Remeasurement losses in defined benefit plans (13355484 {15.355.484)
Total (4.007.663) {14.330.969)
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NOTE 23 - EQUITY (Continued)

Accumulated other comprehensive (expenses) / income that will not be reclassified in profit and loss
(Continued)

Revaluation and remeasurement gain/losses

Land and buildings which has been followed as a fixed asset conld transfer to investment propertics by
considering their usage. During the year of 2016, the Group has reclassfied their land and buildings as
investment propertics and represented by using [air value method. With the first transfer in 30 June 2016,
the Group had fair value increase amounting to TL 11.347.821 (31 December 2015: TL 1.024.515) and
this amount is accounted under the equily as revaluation and remeasurement gains fund.

Remeauserement Losses in Defined Benefit Plans

Provision for employment benefits is calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable
obligation arising from the rotirement of the employees of the Group. Group recognized all actuarial
gains and losses in other comprehensive income. Remeasurement loss recognized under equity in the
balance sheet amounts to TL 15.353.484 (31 December 2015: TL 15.335.484).

Accumiddated other comprehensive (expenses) / income that may be reclassified in profit and loss

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Foreign exchange differences (2.882.278) (15.308.843)
Losses on hedging instruments (850.783) -
Total (3.733.061) (15.308.843)

Losses on Hedging Instruments

Loss on the effective portion of derivative instruments determined as hedging of future cash flows has
been recognized directly in the equity, and the loss on ineffetive portion of forementioned derivative
instruments was accountined through profit or loss. The Group has accounted the loss arising from
hedge accounting amounting to TL 850.783 under equity (31 December 2013; None),

Capital Reserves and Retained Earnings

Subsequent to the first inflation adjusted financial statements, equily ilems such as; “Capital, Emission
Premiums, Legal Reserves, Statutory Reserves, Special Reserves and Extraordinary Reserves™ are
carried al carrying value in the balance sheet and their adjusted values are collectively presented in
equity.

Based on the declaration of CMB, “Paid-in Capital”, “Restricted reserves appropriated from profit”
and “Share Premiums” is required to present by their amounts in statutory accounts. Differences
arising from inflation adjustments:

- If the difference is arising due to the inflation adjustment of “Paid-in Capital” and not vet been
transferred to capital should be classified under the “Inflation Adjustment io Sharc Capital”
following “Paid-in Capital™

h
w
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NOTE 23 - EQUITY (Continued)
Capital Reserves and Retained Earnings (Continued)

- i the diftference is duc to the inflation adjustment of “Restricted Reserves™ and “Share Premium™
and the amount has not been utilized in dividend distribution or capital increase vet, it shall be
classified under “Retained Earnings”™. Other equity items shall be carried at the amounts valued in
accordance with CMB Fmancial Reporting Standards.

Other equity items shall be carried at the amounts valued in accordance with CMB Financial
Reporting Standards.

Capital adjustment differences can only be included 1o capital.
Dividend distribution

The company lakes dividend distnbution decision in general board by taking into account Turkish
Commercial Code (TCC), Capital Markels Law (CMB) and Capital Market Regulations, Corporate
Tax, Income Tax, other relevant legislations and relevant legislations of the Articles of Association of
the Company and "Dividend Distribution Policy”.

On the other hand,

a) In carly adaption of TAS/ TFRS, retained carnings resulied from redrafling of comparative linancial
statements in line with regulations,

b} “Equity inflation adjustment differences”™ resulting from restricted reserves without any record
preventing dividend distribution,

c) Retained carnings resulting from the adjustments of {inancial statements according to inflation for
the [irst time, can be distributed to the sharcholders as dividend.

Besides, m case "Equity Effect Relaled to the Share Purchase" account is in the consolidated financial
staternent of equity, alorementioned account item is not considered as discount or premium item while
calculating the nel distributable profit.

The CMB’s requires the disclosure of total amount of net profit in the statutory records and other
resources which may be subject to profit distribution in the {inancial statements and to be announced

to public. The total gross amount that can be subject to profit distribution according 1o legal records is
TL 165.951.103,

Resolutions of the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of the Company, considering TCC, Capital
Market Statutes, Capital Market Law (CML), Capital Market Board (CMB) and other relevant statute
provisions and relevant provisions in our Company's Arlicles of Association and our "Dividend
Policy” announced to the public; according to the financial statements for the 1 January 2015-31
December 20135 financial period prepared in accordance with "Statement on Principles Regarding
Financial Reporting on Capital Market" (11 - 14.1) provisions of CMB and according to Turkish
Accounting Standards and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards published by '"Public Oversight,
Accounting and Auditing Standards Institute;" its principles of presentation defined according to CMB
decisions on the subject, passed through independent auditing; when considering “Current Tax
Expense for the Period”, “Deferred Tax Income™ and "Consolidated Equity of Participations" all
together, subtracting a 168,672,590 TL section of this amount for "Net profit for the year" and seeing
that 32.147.070 TL is "netl profit {or the period”, in accordance with the regulations of CMB regarding
profit distribution; informing sharcholders that no profit distribution shall be made for the 1 January
2015-31 December 2015 financial period and submitting this matter to General Meeling for approval,
as our legal records held in the scope of TCC and TPL reveal that "Net Period Profit” for the | January
2013-31 December 20135 financial period; informing General Meeting that legal reserves in {he scope
of TCC shall be allocated and transferring this amount to previous vears losses.
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NOTE 24 - SALES AND COST OF SALES

Sales:
2016 2015
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
Advertisement sales 189.149.299  103.596.416  201.738.2061 111.839.648
Circulation and publishing sales 93.144.604 46.936.902 88.788.868 44 508.115
Other 8.364.245 1.895. 447 17.311.080 7.804.205
Net sales 290.658.208  152.428.765  307.838.209 164.151.968
Cost of sales (163.738.024)  (85504.336) (168.482.782)  (83.617.768)
Gross profit 124.9201.184 06,924,229 139355427 78.534.200
Cost of Sales:
The details of cost of sales for the vears ended 30 June 2016 and 20135 are as follows:
2016 2015
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
Raw material 65.572 986 35.565.5329 60.692.912 31.941.857
Paper 40.942.284 20.316.563 40.483.873 21.297.782
Printing and ink 16.344.461 12.283.504 11.230.297 5.782.031
Other 8.286.241 2.965.462 8.978.742 4.862.044
Personnel expenses 53.731.055 28.035.364 38.705.628 27.971.964
Amortization {Note 13} 12,928.103 7.413.928 14.396.146 6.790.617
News agency expenses 6.078.377 3.198.789 4159578 2.967.901
Fuel, elecinicity, water and office
expenses 4,439 552 2.714.116 3.210.740 1.632.011
Distribution, storage and travel 2.676.971 1.452.992 2.633.846 1.119.274
Commissions 2.389.662 1.275.061 3.812.733 2.166.476
Outsourced services 2223355 967.292 2.186.991 1.386.868
Maintenance and repair expenses 1.830.438 521.392 1.889.581 832.566
Rent expenses 1.531.217 795913 1.625.662 692.988
Communication 1.325.591 1.011.746 1.154.833 463 826
Packaging expenses 751.051 58.872 875.758 461957
Other 10.059.666 2.093 540 12.918.372 7.189.463
Total 165.738.024 85.504.536  168.482.782 83.617.768
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NOTE 25 - GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND MARKETING EXPENSES

4) General administrative expenses:

2016 2015
1 Jamuary - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
30 June 30 Junc 36 June 30 June
Personnel expenses 18.629.713 9.455.710 18.983.734 8.155.727
Depreciation and
amortization charges (Notes 13,16) 12.090.429 4.640.772 14.286.410 7.463.955
Rent expenses 5.549.117 3.083.233 6.404.696 3.216.895
Consultancy expenses 5.258.272 2,497 850 5.494.000 3.211.299
Maintenance and repair expenses 2271315 1.090.024 2,600,356 1.006.550
Fuel, clectricity, water and
office expenses 1.786.297 §30.332 2.770.419 1.410.146
Transportation, stomage and travel
expenses 1.297.282 369.563 1.554.804 822.532
Communication expenses 906.737 273762 1.073.503 548.900
Other 4.178.741 1.352.638 4,467 914 1.885.280
Total 51.967.903 23.593.964 57.035.836 27.721.284
b)  Marketing expenses:
2016 2015
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
30 June 30 June 3¢ June 30 June
Personnel expenses 17.457.882 9.194 522 17.829.733 9.580.043
Advertisement expenses 14,769,292 0,192.772 23,843,590 13.347.105
Transportation,storage and
travel expenses 12.608.672 6.716.293 11.697.011 3.741.782
Promotion expenses 7.334.376 3.331.447 7.042.519 4.396.538
Sponsorship expenses 3.499.049 2.069.508 2,183,965 083.437
Consultancy expenses 1.315.317 608.047 1,715.309 837.604
Outsourced services 1.032.656 468.061 888.258 462.710
Depreciation and amortization
charges (Dipnot 13,16) 141.963 85.200 143,446 71.953
Other 4,047 897 2997314 2.837.183 1.816.369
Total 62.407.104 31.663.166 67.581.234  37.237.541
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NOTE 26 - EXPENSES BY NATURE

2016 2015
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
Payroll expenses 89.818.650 46,683,596 95.519.113  45.707.734
Depreciation and amortization charges 25.160.495 12.139.900 29026002 14,326,525
Total 114979145 58.825.496 124545117  60.034,259

NOTE 27 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME

The details of other operating income for the periods ended at 30 June 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015
1 January - 1 April- 1 Janoary - 1 April-
30 June 30 Junc 30 June 30 June
Foretgn exchange gains 16.647.398  14.489.960 18.760.351 (4.607.727)
Finance income due from
term sales 3.788.331 2.183.147 4,484,501 1.934.321
Finance income from
trade and other receivables 3.723.241 1.093.578 304.408 503,222
Income due from doubtlul irade
receivables (Note 9) 1.988.640 51.668 1.840.187 451.970
Interest income on bank deposits 1.247.084 5377.130 1.682.915 877.271
Reversal of provisions
(Note 18) 737.587 737.587 - -
Unrealized finance expense due from
lerm purchases 165.744 165.744 22.242 (150.729)
Compensation income as a result of tax
lawsnit - - 3.948.857 -
Other 339.079 456 887 4090325  (5.961.353)
Total 28.839.104 19.787.701 35.333.786¢  (6,952.82%)
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NOTE 28 - OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The details of other operating expenses for the periods ended at 30 June 2016 and 2013 are as follows:

2016 2015
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
30 June 30 June 36 June 30 June
Foreign exchange losses 9.461.037 9.283.593 17.933.631 2.442 469
Provision for doubtful
receivables (Note 9) 8.570.678 4.298.284 4.028.147 575.680
Unrealized finance mcome
due {rom term sales 2.163.323 349.200 1.012.868 114.304
Fines and compensation expense 1.732.113 1.514.984 §43.078 319949
Provision for lawsuits (Note 18) 1.309.043 318.901 512,700 {16.800)
Aids and donations 157.778 132.909 368.687 219.080
Other 968.661  (1.421.027) 2413310 2.399.190
Total 24,364,835  14.476.846  27.134.421 6.053.872

NOTE 29 - INCOME FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

The details of income from investing activitics for the periods ended at 30 June 2016 and 2015 arc as
follows:

2016 2015

1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

Gamn on fair value changes of the
investment property (Nole 14) 5.760.500 5.760.500 809,132 226.078
Rent and building service income 1.709.775 729.102 1.633.395 §88.837
Dividend income 167.281 167.281 - -

Gain on sales of property, plani

and equipment 9.847 (46.196) 11.146 -
Foreign exchange gains 3.263 1,487 2.422 1471
Total T7.650.666 6.612.174 2,476,095 1.116.386
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NOTE 30 — EXPENSE FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

The details of expenses from investing activities for the periods ended at 30 June 2016 and 2013 are as

foHows:
2016 2015
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
Provision for impairment of infangible
asset 47.078.289 47078289  34.072.512 34.072.512
Foreign exchange losses - - 354.747 213.670
Loss on property and
property, plant and equipments - (5.882) 491.635 491.635
Total 47.078.289 47072407  34.918.894 34.777.817

NOTE 31 - FINANCIAL EXPENSES

The details of financial expenses for the periods ended at 30 June 2016 and 2013 are as follows:

2016 2015

1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

Interest expense on bank loans 19.360.602  11.G59.687 8.622.041 4,441,704

Foreign exchange losses 4.463.097 5.691.401 (2.307.475)  (10.122.146)
Credit comission, banking and factoring

EXPENses 1.386.301 716.764 1.733.179 968 .464

Expenses of held for trading

derivative instruments 1.058.093 1.058.093 - -

Other 540,222 337.692 78.973 33.687

Total 26.808.515  18.863.637 8.126.718  (4.678.291)
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NOTE 32 - INCOME TAXES
30 June 2016 31 December 2815

Corporate and income tax payable 2.816.353 10.108.139
(Less): Prepaid tases (363 950) (11.218.393)
Tax payables / (receivables) 2,452,403 (1.110.456)

Turkish tax legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiaries to file a consolidated tax
return. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected i these consolidated financial statements, have
been calculated on a separale-entity basis,

The details of the effective tax laws in countrics which Group has significant operations are stated
below:

Turkev:

In accordance with Turkish Corporate Tax Law has been amended by Law No. 5520 dated 13 Junc
20006, corporation tax is 20% for 2016 (2015: 20%). Corporation fax is payable on the {otal income of the
companies after adjusting for certain disallowable expenses, corporate income tax exemptions (gain from
associates’ exemption, investment allowances elc.) and corporate income tax deductions (like rescarch
and development expenditures deduction). No further tax is payable unless the profit is distributed.

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations, having representative office in Turkey, or resident
corporations are not subject to withholding tax. Otherwise, dividends paid are subject to withholding
tax at the rate of 15%. An increase in capital is not considered as a profit distribution.

Corporations arc required to pay advance corporation tax quarterly at the rate of 20% on their
corporale income. Advance tax is to be declared by the 14th day of the second month following each
calendar quarter end and is payable by the 17th of the second month following each calendar quarter
end. Advance tax paid by corporations is credited against the annual corporation tax Hability. The

balance of the advance tax paid may be refunded or used to set off against other liabilities to the
government.

In accordance with Tax Law No: 3024 “Law Related to Changes in Tax Procedure Law, Income Tax
Law and Corporate Tax Law™ that was published on the Official Gazetle on 30 December 2003 {o
amend the tax base for non-monetary assets and liabilities, effective from 1 January 2004, the income
and corporate taxpayers will prepare the statutory financial statemenis by adjusting the non-monetary
assets and Hiabilities for the changes i the general purchasing power of the Turkish Lira. In
accordance with the aforementioned law provisions, in order to apply inflation adjustment, cumulative
inflation rate (TURKSTAT WPI) over last 36 months and 12 months must exceed 100% and 10%,

respectively. Inflation adjustment has not been applied as these conditions were not fulfilled in the
vears 2013 and 2014,

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and deflinitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies
file their tax returns within the 23" of the fourth month following the close of the financial year to
which they relate,

Tax authorities can review accounting records within five years and if they determine any errors on the
accounting records, tax payablc can be reassessed.
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NOTE 32 - INCOME TAXES (Continued)

Turkey (continued):

Under the Turkish taxation sysiem, tax losses can be carried forward to offsel against future taxable
income for up to 3 vears. Tax losses cannot be carried back 1o offset profils from previous periods. As
publicly disclosed on 19 April 2011, the Company plans to make use of the requirenients sel cut m
relation to “Tax Base Increase™ in Law No: 6111 “Restructuring of some receivables and Social
Secunty and General Health Tnsurance Law and Other Law Amending Certain Laws and Decrecs™;
therefore, 30% of losses attributable Lo the periods that are subject to tax base increase will not be offset
agamst the income to be obtained in 2011 and subsequent periods.

As of 30 June 2016, the Company has offset its financial losses attributable to the calculation of

offsetiing of fax assel against deductible Ginancial losses or curment {ax provision in accordance with the
above-mentioned principles.

There are numerous exemptions in the Corporate Income Tax Law. This is one of the exceptions to the
Company are described below;

Dividend income {rom shares in capital of another corporation subject to resident taxpaying (except

dividends from investment funds participation cerlificates and investment frusts shares) are exempt
from corporate tax.

Gamms from issued premiums denived from the disposal of sales al nominal values during
mmcorporations and the capital increase of joint stock companies are exemplt from corporate tax.

For compames participating in 10% or more of the capital of a non-resident hmited hability or joinl stock
company, (except lor those whose principal activily is financial leasing or investment property) lor at
least one vear until the date of the income is generated and transferred (o Turkey until the date of the
filing of the corporate income tax retwrn of the fiscal vear in which the income is generated is exempt
from corporation tax subject 1o those subsidiaries being subject to corporate income tax, or alike, in their
country of legal residence or business center at the rate of at least 15% (minimum corporate income tax
applicable in Turkey for those whose principal activity is {inance assurance or insurance).

The income of corporations arising from their offices or permanent representatives abroad (except for
corporations whose principal activity 1s Oinancial leasing or mvestment of markelable securities) for at
Ieast a vear until the date of the income is gencrated and transferred to Turkey until the date of the
filing of the corporate income tax return of the fiscal vear i which the income 1s generated 15 exempt
from corporation tax and provided that the foreign office or permanent representative must be subject
{0 corporate income tax, or alike, in the country it is located at the rate of at least 153% (at corporate

income tax raie applicable in Turkey for those companies whose principal activity is financial
ASSUrANCE Of insurance).

73% of the gains derived from the sale of preferential mghts, usufruct shares and founding shares from
investiment equity and real property which has remained in assets more than two [ull vears are exempt
from corporate tax. To be entitled to the exemption, the relevant gain is required to be heid in a fund
account in liabilities and it must be withdrawn from the entity for a period of 5 vears. The sales

congideration should be collected until the end of the second calendar vear following the vear the sale
was reahized.
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NOTE 32 - INCOME TAXES (Continued)
Turkev (continned):

Accordmg (o the regulation, published 1n the 27639 numbered Oflicial Gazette on August 1, 2010
based on Law Na: 6009 through article 3, the phrase “regarding only the vears 2000, 2007 and 20087
on temporary article 69 of  Income Tax Law.193 has been revised which was abolished by The
Constitutional Court decision numbered 2009/144 published in the Official Gazetie on § Janoary 2010,
With respect to this revision, undeductible investment allowance due to insufficient income and
deferred investment allowance amounts can be used without a vear limitation. Investment allowance
amount, which will be used in determination of the tax assessment, will not exceed 23% profit of the

relevant year. In addition lo this, 20% corporate lax raie will be applied on the income afler the
deduction of the allowance instead of 30%,

In accordance with Law No: 6009, which 1s related to the 23% threshold and requires the incentive
amount that will be subject io investment incentive exemption in delermining tax base cannot exceed
23% of the respective income, has been revoked based on the ground that it is confrary 1o the
Constitution upon the Constitutional Court’s resolution No: E, 2010/93 K. 2012/20 (“stay of
execulion™) issued on 9 February 2012 and published in the Official Gazette No: 28208 on 18

February 2012, The related Constitutional Court’s decision was published in the official Gazette No:
28719 as at 26 July 2013,

Russian Federation

The corporate tax rale effeclive in Russian Federation is 20% (2013: 20%).

Russian tax vear is the calendar vear and other fiscal year ends are not permitied. Profit tax is
calculated on a year-lo-date basis. Advance payments are made monthly, with different calculation
methods for quarterly or monthly schedules subject to the taxpayer’s choice.

Tax returns are filed till the 28" of March, following the closc of the financial year.

According fo Russian Federation’s tax system, losses may be carried forward for 10 years 1o be
deducted from future taxable income. Starting from 2007 there is no limitation as to the maximum

amount that can be deducted in each particular vear. Rights related to tax losses that have not been
utilized in the related periods will be fost.

Tax refunds are technically possible but are very difficult to obtain in practice. Tax consolidations of
tax reporting/pavments by different lepal entities (or grouping) are not permitted in Russia at present.
Generally, dividend income pavable to a foreign organization is subject to withholding tax at 13%.
This standard rale may. however, be reduced under the provisions of applicable double tax {realy.

In Russian Federation the tax regulations are subject o various comments and change [requently.

Regarding to TME’s operalions the interpretation of tax regulations by tax authorities may differ from
the management,

Belarug

The corporate tax rate effective in Belarus is 18% (2013: 18%).

The tax period is the calendar vear. Profit tax is calculated as progressive total. Advance payments are
made quarterly, on the basis of cither the previous year resuits or expected current year profits.

The annual corporale tax declaration is due by 20 March of the lotlowing year. Tax loss carry forward
is not allowed.

Tax refunds arc possibic. Tax consolidations of tax reporting/payments by different legal entitics (or
grouping) are nol permitied in Belarus at present. Generally, dividend income pavable to a foreign
orgam?mmn is subject to withholding tax at 12%. This standard rate may, however, be reduced under
the provisions of applicable double tax treaty.

The Belarus tax regulations change frequently,
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NOTE 32 - INCOME TAXES (Continued)
Kazakhstan

Under the Tax Code of the Republic of Kazakhstan companies shall pay the CIT on taxable income at
a 20% rate (2015: 20%).

According to the Tax Code, taxable income is delined as the difference between gross annual income
and deductible expenses provided for under the Tax Code taking into account adjusiments made.
Gross annual income is defined as any income, from domestic or foreign sources, that is received or

accrued by a taxpayer during the tax period. This income may be in moneclary, tangible or intangible
form.

Deductible expenses should be directly associated with generaling (axable income from aclivities
performed by a company. An accrual method is applied with respect to income and expenses

determination for CIT purposcs. According (o the tax legislation, losses may be carried forward for 10
vears Lo be deducted from future taxable income,

A tax period for CIT is a calendar vear. A taxpaver is o forecast its expected taxable income and
calculate advance monthly payments which are due not later than 25% day of each month of the
reporting year. The annual CIT return is due by 30 June of the vear following the reporting year.
Should actual CIT liability be different from the initially estimated advances, taxpavers may correct
their tax liabilities during the tax year but not later than 20 December of the reporting tax period.
There are other special requirements relative to calculation of advance payments in the Tax Code. The
following taxpayers shall be entitled not to calculate and make CIT advance payments:

- Taxpayers whose gross annual income after adjustiments for the tax period preceding the previous
tax period, did not exceed 325 times the monthly calculation index set by the law on the state budget
and effective at Janwary 1 of the relevant financial year;

- New taxpayers — during the tax period in which staie registration (record of registration) was carried
out with the justice anthorities, and also during the subsequent tax period;

- Non-resident legal entities newly registered with the tax authorities as taxpavers, and operating in
Kazakhstan through a permanent establishment (PE) withoul a branch or representative office — during

the tax period in which registration with the tax bodies was carried out, and also during the subscquent
tax period.

The tax rates at 30 June 2016, which are used m the calculation of deferred tax, taking each country’s
tax legislations into consideration are as follows:

Tax
Country Rate (%)
Germany 28,0
Belarus 18,0
Russia 20,0
Kazakhstan 20,0
Holland 25,0
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NOTE 32 - INCOME TAXES (Continued)
Deferred Tax

The Group recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based on temporary differences arising
between the financial statements as reported for Turkey Financial Reporting Standards and financial
statements prepared in accordance with the tax legislation. These differences usually result in the
recognition of revenuc and expenses in different reporting periods for the TFRS tax purposes.

Deferred taxes are calculated on lemporary differences thal are expected (o be realized or scttled based

on the taxable income in coming years under the liability method using tax rates enacied at the balance
sheet dates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented in net in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, since they are presented in net in the financial statements of subsidianies and joint ventures,
which are each individual tax pavers. Temporary differences deferred tax assels and deferred tax
liabilities at the table below are presented based on gross amounts,

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Deferred tax liabilities (32.965.184) (52.632.797)
Deferred tax assets 15.116.837 10.005.631
Deferred tax liabilities, net (37.848.327) (42.647.166)

The temporary differences and deferred tax assels / (habilities) using the enacted tax rates as of
30 Junc 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Total Deferred tax assets /
temporary differences {liabilities)
2016 2015 2016 2015

Provision for employment
benefits and unused vacation rights 35.056.581

34.436.023 11.611.316 10.887.205
Difference between tax base and
catrying value of trade receivables 28.995991 21.355.086 5.193.907 4271817
[nvesting properties
valuation differences {753.899.710) (58.842.740) (3.788.202) (2.942.1343
Deterred income 2.053.890 2.146.243 410,778 425249

Difference between tax bases

and carrying value of property,

plant and equipment and intangibles (285.733.939) (302838414} {(57.146.7788)  (59.112.033}
Other, net 28.587.623 26.520.838 6.470.662 3818732
Total (246.939.564)  (257.218.964) (37.848.327)  (42.647.166)
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NOTE 32 — INCOME TAXES (Continued)

As of 30 June 2016, carry forward tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognized
amounted o TL 262,353,592 (31 December 2015: TL 278.461.083).

The maturity analysis of carry forward tax logses wtilized is as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

2016 20 877.729 206.944 782
2017 19.073.224 10.845.505
2018 12.073.674 8.167.515
2019 10.784.374 9.826.693
2020 8.624.436 8.887.201
2021 19.275.786 20.042.557
2022 6.441.220 6.336.104
2023 35.624.285 25287224
2024 86.518.640 36.889.891
2023 27.199 840 105.233.609
2026 7.060.384 -
Total 262.553.592 278.461.083

The movements of net deferred tax liabilities for the periods ended 30 June 2016 and 2013 are as
follows:

1 January - 1 January -

30 June 2016 30 June 2015

1 January (42.647.166) (38.815.481)
Deferred tax income in consclidated

income staicments 10.161.870 6.587.346

Accounted in equity (345.344) {331.433)

Currency translation differences (3.017.687) (10.507.026)

Disposal of subsidiary (Note 35) - (2.244,548)

30 June {37.848.327) {65.311.142)

The analysis of the tax expense / (income) for the periods ended at 30 June 2016 and 2015 are as
follows;

2016 2015
1 Janunary - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
30 June 3¢ June 30 June 30 June
Current tax expense (3.031.420% (2954917 (8.151.349) (4.234.188)
Deferred tax income / {expense) 10.161.870 6,237.133 6.587.346 15323439
Total 7.130.450 3.282.216 (1.564.003) 11.289.251
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NOTE 32 -~ INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The reconciliation of the current period tax expense in the consolidated statement of income for the
periods ended at 30 Junc 2016 and 2015 and consolidated tax and the tax (income) / expense
calculated with the current tax rate over income before tax and non-controlling interests are as follows:

Loss before taxes and non-controlling interests

Current period tax calculated at the elfective

30 June 2016

(51.805.060)

31 December 2015

(18.291.714)

tax rates of countrics (10.361.012) (6.267,34%)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 3.067.209 (4.435.392)
Effect of share losses investments

accounted by the equity method 117.674 161.984
Carry forward losses utilized - (329.334)
Effect of unrecognized deferred tax asscts

for carry forward losses 2.991.940 19.975.098
Income not deductible for tax purposes (1.726.143) (1.406.672)
Other, net (1.217.118) (6.113.932)
Tax (income) / expense {7.130.450) 1.564.003

NOTE 33 - LOSS PER SHARE

Loss per share 1s calculated by dividing the net loss for the period attributable to equily holders of the
company to the weighled average number of ordinary shares in issue. Loss per share as of 30 Jume

2016 and 2015 15 as follows:

2016 2015
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
30 June 30 Junc 30 June 30 June
Net loss for the period (33.204.318)  (29.434.803) (9.319.975)  (11.250.425)

Number of ordinary shares
m 1ssuge (with nominal
value of TL | each)

Loss per share (TL)

Loss per share from continued
and discontinued operations

352.000.000

(0,0602)

352,000,000

(0,0533)

552.000.000

(0,0169)

552.000.000

(0,0204)
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NOTE 34 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

For the purpose of accompanying consolidated financial statements, related parties are referred to as
Iegal entities in which Dogan Holding direcily or indirectly has participation, including any enlities
under joint control; real persons and/or legal entities that have direct or indirect control or joint control
over the Company and their and their close family members (immediate family members) and legal
entities having direct or indirect control or joint control by them and Iegal entitics having significant
effect over the Company or their key management personnel; Company’s affiliates, subsidiarics and
members of the BOD, key management and their close family member {immediate family members)
and real persons and/or legal entities that are directly or indirectly controlled individually or jointly.
As of 30 June 2016, 31 December 2015 and 30 June 2013 related party balances and transactions are
described below,

i) Balances of related parties:
Short term reccivables due from related parties:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Trade reccivables from related partics

Dogan Internet Yaymcihigi ve Yatinm AS,

(“Dogan Internet Yavincilifn"y 16.048.628 13.357.138
Dogan Gazetecilik A.S. ("Dogan Gazetecilik")y® 8.364 964 7703561
Dogan Dagstim Sati ve Pazarlama A S. ("Dogan Daginm”y® 2.349.861 2.034.769
Dogan TV Holding A §. ("Dogan TV Holding") 1.185.577 1.142.928
Dogan Media Int, GmbH {"Dogan Media"y? 490,343 1,193,282
Dogan Miizik Kitap Magazacibk ve Pazarlama A.S. C"D&R™Y® 169.366 165.828
Other 970,789 774,822

29.579.528 26.372.328
' The balance is arising from sales of internet commercials to Doffan Intemet Yaynalfs ve Yaunm A.S. through

websites,

(‘f’) Receivable ansing from printing newspapers of Dogan Gazetecilik in the Group's printing houses.
B Receivables ari sing from the daily distribution of newspapers of the Group.
4 The batance ansing from electaicily and other various expenses invoiced to Hiteriyet Gazelecilik ve Matbaacihk A8, by
_ Dogan TV Holding as a result of that Hilrriyet share the same building with DoZan TV Holding,
%1 Receivables agsing from printing of Dofan Media newspapers in the Hivrrivetl Frankfurf Germany plants and selling
o advertisement services.
{&

Receivables anising from adverlising services.
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NOTE 34 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

i) Balances of related partics (Continued):

Shert term payables to related parties:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Trade payables to related partics

Dogan Media " 8.629.694 13.584.901
Dogan Dig Ticaret ve Mimessillik AS.

(“Dogan Dig Ticaret™) & 5.857.358 1.880.094
Milta Turizm Isletmeleri A.S. (“Milta™) @ 1.541.517 1.907.577
DTES Elektrik Enerji Toptan Satis A.S. (“DTES™) 1.498.545 1.441.065
Dogan Faktoring Hizmetleri A.S. (“Dogan Faktoring™) 1,313,518 1.543.361
Ortadogu Olomotiv Ticaret A.S. (“Ortadopu Otomotiv™) ‘¥ 713,002 399968
Dogan Sirketler Grubu Holding A.S.

("Dogan Holding") ™ 431.519 153.886
Dogan TV Dijital Platform Igl. A.S. (Dejan TV Digital™) ® 401.335 913.053
DTV Haber ve Gérsel Yaymeilik A.S. (“Kanal D7) @ 214325 1.010.264
Daoruk Televizyon ve Radyo Yaymcilik

(“Doruk Televizyon™ % 187.752 388.349
D Yapim Reklameihk ve Dagitim AS.

("D Yapim Reklamecilik™) @V - 60.467
Other 952338 837303

21.742.903 24.120.290
{13

Arising from the cash paid by Dogan Media International for the printing service.
The Group's raw materials are provided by Dogian Dis Ticaret.
The balance is arising renting car services from Milla,

2
(3
5
5}
(5}
{7
iH
&

The balance 15 arising from the commissions of collection servies and factoring debts.
The balance is arisiag from the services of rental oflice.

The Company provides intemet access services,

The balunce is arising advertisement services.

Y9 Arisin g from sales of news and commercial advenisement of the Group.
0 The balance is arising from advertisement §lms and production services.
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NOTE 34 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

ii) Significant transactions with related parties:

Transactions in related parties {or the periods ended as of 30 Junc 2016 and 2013 are as follows:

Significant service and product sales to related parties:

2016 2015
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
Dogan Dagitim 49.454.093  24.717.252  47.374.568 23.905.787
Dogan Gazetecilik ™ 12.660.238  6.692.827 12.423.046 6.155.712
Dogan Internet Yaymeihgs @ 13992460  9.301.815 13.432.853  7.735.406
Dopan Media 3.082.644  1.706.446  3357.853  1.685.900
Mozaik {letisim Hizmetleri A.S. ©
("Mozaik") 600.400 299330 1.015.473 355.029
Kanal D ® 363.732 158.333 762.738 164.049
D- Market Elektronik Hizmetler
ve Tic. A.S. (“D Market™) ¥ 272.075 210.847 845.665 380.598
Dogan Egmont @ 229.804 121.281 291.373 212,546
D&R 193313 128.151 211.277 129.186
Dogan Burda Dergi Yaymcihk ve
Pazarlama A.S. ("Dojian Burda") 107313 21.666 132.710 21.483
Doruk Televizyon 33.667 33.667 490.977 99.43]
Other 478.388 184.672 222.099 155.207
83.468.129  43.576.287 80.560.632 41.000.334
<i} The group makes the sales of daily newspapers to Dogon Dagitim.

7 The newspapers owned by Dofian Gazetecilik are printed in the Group’s printing houses.

The sales of intemet commercials of the Group zre carried out through Dogan intemet Yaymealhi ve Yatinm A8,
The sale and the commercial of Hirryel Furope are carried ous by Dogan Media,
The balance s anising from the Group’s commercial adveriisement sales.

The balance is arising from the Group™s news and commercial adverlisement sales.
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NOTE 34 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

if) Significant transactions with related partics (Continued):
Significant service and product purchases from related parties:

2016 2015
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 Aprit-
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
Dogan Dis Ticaret 45951976 23.065.950 44.149.537 23.876.972
Dogan Dagitim @ 10423978 5520956  $.793.292  4.503.362
Dogan Haber Ajansi A.S. (“DHA™) @ 4076401 1979105  3.560.789  3.560.789
DTES @ 3872618 1.580.709  3.725.708  1.987.065
Dogan Internet Yaymeilg © 2948462 1785527 2947325  1.707.396
Ortadogu Otomotiv @ 2564.666 1,142,367 2400456  1.037.675
Dogan Holding " 2029169 1.090243 2234790 1.148.135
Milta ® 2.005.252  1.072.630  1.760.474  867.943
Dogan Gazetecilik 1.521.654 1521654 1630756 738939
Dogan TV Digital ® 1.419.727 698.808  1.365.217 674.852
Kanal D 9" 848.226 18.448 1225720  347.965
Mozaik ¥ 604,435 300246 517164 223748
Dogan Burda *¥ 227.814 63251 - -
Doruk Televizyon ¢ 340.417 95.000 . .
Dogan Egmont ¥ - - 803.046 803.046
D Yapm Reklameiik % 13.070 13.070 208.232 64.600
Other 3985926 2.591.081 1.608.983 1.073.231
82.833.7%1 42.539.045 76,931,489 42.615.718
{1? The Group’s raw materials are provided by Dogan Dig Ticaret.
‘f} Dogan Dafstim provides newspaper distribution services to the Group.
&3 Dogan Haber Ajansi provides aews services. The related subsidiary has been sold to Dofan Sicketler Holding on 27
- March 2015,
N’\' The balance ts arising from electricity energy provided for the Hiirriyet building and printing houses in regions.
& Group's online advertisement sales and utility service are done by Dogan Intemet.
(6} The balance 15 artsing {rom rental office and purchase of services from the company.
0 Financial, legal, information technology and other consultancy serviees fogether with other services received from
~ Dogan Holding A5
% The balance consists of flight tickets, accommedation and rental cars used for operation purposes.
(.9) The balance bs arising from rent, security and other expenses of the Group's building, which is rented as headquarter.
9 e Company provides services of infernet access 1o the Group,
(‘”? Arising from the adverlisement services,
U3 The batance is arising from service expense of call-center and commercial service provided by D-Smart channels sold
by Mozaik ltetigim.
93 The balance is arising from Group's sdvertisement sales.
{14}

The company provides news and adverlisement services,
The balance 1s arising from Group production service taken for the commercial Rlms,
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NOTE 34 - RELATED PARTY PISCLOSURES (Continucd)

i) Significant transactions with related parties (Continued)

2016

2615

1 January -

1 April- 1 January - 1 April-

Other income 30 June 36 June 3G June 30 June
Dopan Dig Ticaret 742923 371.461 714,522 357.261
Dogan Dagitim 188.302 62.156 294 936 146.383
Dogan Media 168.154 28.487 252.185 132.815
D&R 122.384 122.384 - .
Dogan Gazetecilik 42328 22.831 40.2753 28.799
Dogan Holding @ 16.943 16.945  3.931.929 .
Other 428.107 289.298 501.300 38.202

1.709.143 913.562  A.735.147 703.460

9 The amount is related to sales of Dogan Haber Ajanst and Dogan s Ticaret.

Amounting to TL 1.080.237 of other income which totally amounts to TL 5.733.147 consists of rent
income which Hiirrivet gathers from the Group companics.

2010 2015
Purchase of property, plant 1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
and equipment and intangible assets 30 June 306 June 36 June 30 June
Dogan Holding - - 1.834 -
D-Market 369 - 32.737 32.119
369 - 3457 32119

2016 2615
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
Financial income: 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 Junc
Dogan Haber Ajansi 7.693 - 25.408 -
7.693 - 25.408 -
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NOTE 34 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

ii) Significant transactions with related parties (Continued)

2016 2015
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 April-
Financial expense: 30 June 34 June 340 June 30 June
Dogan Faktoring 361.019 195.522 352.851 197.338
Dogan Holding 43.017 - - -
404.036 195,522 352.851 197.338

¥ Tnvoicing und controlling of Group's commercial advertisement and collection of these commercial
advertisement receivables are made by Dogan Factoring, commissions paid for these services are accounted in
financial expenses.

iii) Key Management Personnel:

The Group determined the key management personnel as board of directors and exceoutive
comumittee. Benefits provided to key management personnel consist of wage, premium, health
insurance, fransportation and post-cmployment benefits,

2016 2015
1 January - 1 April- 1 January - 1 Aprii-
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

Salartes and other short term benefits 4389891 2.219.749 3701134 2.015.039
Post-emloyment benefits 788.902 209,132 - -
5.178.793 2.428.881 3.761.134 2.015.059
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NOTE 35 - DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY

Dogan Haber Ajans:

- On 27 March 2015, the Group transferred its subsidiary Dogan Haber Ajans: for TL 3.466.492
lo the Dogan Sirketler Grubu Holding A.S.

Book value of net assets disposed of 30 June 2015

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 640,363

Trade recervables 6.838 442

Other receivables 1.887.118
Non-current assets

Other receivables 408.839

Property, plant and equipment 1.888.333

Intangible assels 62,133

Delerred tax assels 2.244 548
Short-term lLabilities

Trade payables 3.003.168

Other payables 688.172

Other short term provisions 4.127.488

Other short-term liabilities 1.031.763
Long-term liabilities

Provision for employee termination benefits 5.564.030
Net assets disposed of (846.843)

Excess of disposal recognized under equity as a result of
transaction with majority ewner
Consideration: 3.466.492

Consideration paid in cash and cash equivalents
Net cash inflow on disposal:;

(Less) cash and cash equivalent disposed of {640.3063)

Total cash inflow 2.826.129
Excess of disposal recognized under equity as a result of

transaction with majority owner 4.313,335
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NOTE 36 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
36.1 Financial Risk Management
(i)  Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate sensitive financial instruments are as follows:

38 Junc 2016 31 December 2015
Financial instraments with fixed intevest rate
Bank deposits (Nofe 3) 17.601.962 81.007.641
Financial Habilities (Note 7) 243,382,942 274.760.335
Financial instruments with floating interest rate
Financial liabilities (Note 7) 32.237.822 4}1.248.822

The Group is exposed to mnterest rale risk through the impact of rate changes on intercst bearing
hiabilities and assets. The Group management uses interest bearing short term assets within natural
policy context to stabilize the maturity of the interest bearing liabilities and assets. Farthermore, the

Group hedges interest rate risks arising from floating rate borrowings, by limited use of derivatives,
such as interest rale swaps.

Borrowings issued at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued
at fixed rate expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As of 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2013, the
Group’s borrowings at floating rates arc predominantly denominated in US Dellars and Euros.

At 30 June 2013, had the interest rates on US Dollars and BEuro denominated borrowings been 100
basis point higher/lower with all other variables held constant, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate borrowings; net profit for the period before tax and non-controlling
inferests would have been lower/lugher by TL 320.440 (30 June 2013: TL 320.993).

80



18

- SICR69 - 09/°66¢°8 SLTFET6 SLTFET6 (o1 210N} 43110~
sajqeded 2410
- - - 916'9£6'9¢ 916'9¢69€ 07T 099°9¢ {6 PION) 2110~
- - - 06T0C1+T 06T 0TI P 06T 0T1vE (pE 210N dpand pajpgay-
sarqeled apet ],
- PEYEREEY LT LiSPYE 86971091 £FESEL€TE LEU600'9EE (1 210N sajquied [eioueul]
SN [BIURRL]
5I83A G s1EaA SO Sypuolt ¢ AAO{ING Ysud anjea STOT Fqueadag 1¢
U] 340]4] c—1 F Bl B} 537 LR U0 B0 Suidaae
- 791'L61 - 6F96LY L [18°9£0°8 LIS 950'8 (0] MON} 421G~
sajquied YO
- - - 9117698°C¢ 911°698°¢¢ 058 8FSSS {6 MON) 2O~
- - - £06°THLIT £06°THLIT CO6'THL1T {p§ 210N} and panpay -
sajqeded aped g,
- COOrgla LTl L6YSEEOE]  9LP8Ll'gh 881 08 POE F9L°0T9SLT {7, opy) sajqeded [pioueUL]
sanNg el jpunun]
SIBAA § SIHDA SH3UOW syjuoM ¢ MOL[IN0 YSBd anjeA 0107 dunp ¢
HEY] 210 S~ 1 Z1~¢€ uuiy; s8971 {ENIDREIHND [BI0F, Juidais)y

:dnoiny a1 Jo seniiqer] [eroueny woly Fustie Ysu Aipinbi] o1 smoys mopdq 3[qe) ay L,

yse Aupmbrr (11

(panupuo)) JUAwIad U Al HSHY [BIOURUL]  ['9¢

{ponunuo)) SINFWNMISNT TVIONVNLI WOUA ONISTIV MSRI 40 TIATT ANV THNLVN - 92 ALON

(" PAIBIIPLL 281N seajun ((711,,) BRI YSRNn], ti possaldya sjunoiy)
9107 ANNS 0€ AAANT QOTIAd WIIHAINI 3HL 904
SINAWILYLS TVIONVNIA GALVAITOSNOD AHL Ol SHLON

$V MITIDVVELVIAN A MITIDALAZVD LAATYNH



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed i Turkish Lira *TL™) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 36 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

36.1 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(i)  Liguidity risk (Continued)

Prudent Ligquidity risk management implies maintaining sulficient cash and marketable sccuritics, the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of commitied credil facilities and the ability to
close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the Group aims
maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping commilted credit lines available.

Funding risk of current and fiture debt requirements is managed by continuance of sufficient and
highly qualified creditor’s access. The Group aims at mainlaining cash and cash equivalents for the
anticipated cash Dows of raw material purchase for the subsequent six-months,

The liquidity table demonstrates the Group’s net financial liabilities in accordance with the redemption
schedule. Such amounts are undiscounted future cash flows of financial habilities of the Group.

Balances due within 12 months cqual their carrying balances as the impaci of discounting is not
significant.

At 30 June 2016, the Group has long-term bank borrowings amounting to TL 117.648.697
(31 December 20135: TL 62.343.476) (Note 7).

(iii) Credit Risk

Ownership of financial assets involves (he risk that counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of
their agreements. These risks are monitored by limiting the credit amount of any individual

counterparty. The credit risk is generally highly spread due to the large number of enlities comprising
the customer bases.

Aeing analvsis for trade receivables:

As of 30 June 2016 there are past due trade receivables amounting to TL 102.978.647 which are not
considered as doubtful receivables (31 December 2013: TL 100.759.992). The Group does not foresee
any collection risk for the delay up to one month due 1o sector dynamics and conditions. The Group
restructures the trade receivables by applving due date differences which are due over one month
and/or the Group does not foresee any collection risk since they are under coverage of guarantecs such
as morigage, indemnity or puarantee notes. As of 30 June 2016, the amount of morigage and
indemnity received is TL 6.374.747 for the related receivables. (31 December 2015: TL 9.549.566).

As of 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2013, aging analysis for trade receivables that are past due but
not impaired are as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Related party  Other receivables  Related party Other receivables

0-1 month 931.037 31.974.121 783.160 22.016.950
1-3 month 58.118 25.862.482 3.720.794 26.149.943
3-6 month 66.982 25.867.427 2.938.670 19.564.300
G-12 month 132,167 12.379.806 344921 18.758.692
1-2 vears 218,358 3.467.949 127.422 4,335,140
1.426.862 101.551.785 9.914.967 90.845.025

82



HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

2

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 36 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
{Continued)

36.1 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(iil} Credit Risk (Continued)

As of 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2013, aging analysis for {rade receivables that are past due and
impaired is as follows:

Impaired 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Past due 0 - 3 months 723,304 206.440
Past due 3 - 6 months 138.420 273314
Past due 6 months and over 55.578.054 50.678.924
Less: Provision Tor mapatrment (Note 9, 34.1) (56.439.778) (31.158.678)

The balance of related party receivables that are past due and impaired as of 30 June 2016 is none (31
December 2015: TL 799.004). There is no trade receivable which is not over due and impaired as of
30 June 2016.
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HURRIYET GAZETECILiK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("T1L7™) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 36 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

36.1 Financial Risk Management (Continucd)
(iv) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk through the impact of rate changes in the translation of

foreign currency denominated liabilitics to TL. These risks are monitored by the analysis of foreign currency
position,

The foreign exchange risk mainly arises from the impact of rate changes in the transiation of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated borrowings which are obtained to fund capital expenditures in domestic and
overseas operations (The risk is monitored in regular meetings). The Group maintains a certain portion of its
excess cash and cash equivalents in foreign currency to minimize the currency risk exposure.

The Group’s risk management policy for currency risk is fo maintain sufficient liquid assets for the
anticipated cash flows of raw material purchase and borrowing repayment amounts in each major foreign
currency for the subsequent three to six months. However, this policy should be revised by the management
when deemed necessary, according to market conditions.

TL equivalents of asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at 30 June 2016 and 31 December
2015 are as follows:

30 June 2016 31 DPecember 2015
Assets 3.007.267 70.627.040
Liabilities (36.238.507) {130.618.593)
Net toreign currency position (892.405) (79.991.553)

Following cxchange rates have been used in the translation of foreign currency denominated balance sheet
items as of 30 June 2016: 2,8936 TL= 1 US Dollar and 3,2044 TL=1 Euro (31 December 2015: 2,9076 TL=
1 US Dollar and 3,1776 TL=1 Euro).
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (*TL") unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 36 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
{Continued)

36,1 Financial Risk Management {Continued)
(iv) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The table summarizes the foreign currency position risk as of 30 Jhune 2016 and 31 December 2013, The
carrying amount of foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities of the Group are as {ollows:

30 June 2016 T Equivalent USD Euro Other
1. Trade receivables 2,316,469 241,793 376.132 411.539
2a. Monetary Financial Assels

(Cash, Banks included) 997.018 78.283 3542 759.130
2b. Non-Monetary Financial Assets - - - -
3. Other 1.100.292 97.162 155.631 -
4. Current Assets (14+2+3) 4.413.779 417.238 635,305 1.176,.689
5. Trade receivables 1.826.778 231.644 361.844 -

Ga. Monetary Fiancial Assets -
6b. Non-Monetary Financial Assets -

7. Other - - - -
8. Non-Current Assets (5+6+7) 593.488 231.644 361.844 -
9. Total Assets (4+8) 5.007.267 648,882 997.149 1.170.689
10, Trade Payables 270,172 32.000 - 177.577
11. Financial Liabilities 32.044.000 - 10.000.000 -
12a. Other Monetary Financial Liabihities 3.924.334 1.348.440 7.018 -
12b. Other Non-Monetary Financial Liabilities - - - -
13. Current Liabilities (10+11+12) 36.238.507 1.380.440 10.007.018 177.577
14. Trade Payables - - - -
i5. Financiel Lisbilities - - - -
16a. Other Monetary

Financial Liabilities - - - -
16b. Other Non-Monetary

Financial Liabilities - - - -

17. Non-Current Liabilties (14+154+16) - - - -
8. Total Liabilities (13+17) 36.238.507 1.380.440 18.007.018 177.577
19, Net asset / liability position of

off-balance sheet derivatives (19a-19h) IL3IRKIS 1947759 5.000.600 -
19a, Off-balance sheet foreign

currency derivative assefs 30.338.83% 4.947.759 5.000.000 -

19h. Off-balance sheet foreign
carrency derivative liabilities -
2. Net foreign currency
asset liability position (9-18+1%) (892.405) 4.216.201 (4.009.869) 993.112
21, Net foreign currency asset / liability
posifion of monetary items

{(I+2at5+60-10-11-124-14-15-16a) (31.093.241) (828.724) (9.265.500) 993.112
22, Fair value of foreign eurrency
hedged financial assets (1.063.479) {367.528) - -
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Liea (“TL7Y unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 36 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL iINSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

36.1 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{iv) Foereign currency risk (Continued)

31 December 2015

TL Equivalent USDh Euro Other
1. Trade receivables 5.856.990 G0.876 1.653.914 337.282
2a. Monetary Financial Assets
{Cash, Banks included) 64.217.366 21.001.731 $25.923 210.320
2b. Non-Monetary Financial Assets - - - -
3. Other 536,756 144.530 - 116.502
4. Current Assets (1+2+3) 70.611.152 21.237.1587 2.379.837 664,304
5. Trade recervables - - - -
6a. Monetary Financial Assels - - - -
6b. Non-Monetary Financial Assets - - - -
7. Other 15.888 - 3.000 -
8, Non-Current Assets (34+6+7) 15.888 - 5.000 -
9. Total Assets (4+8) 70,627,040 21.237.1587 2.584.837 664.304
10. Trade Payables 5.625.457 269.909 875632 2.058.261
1. Financial Liabiiities 136.435.825 35231455 10.698.907 -
12a. Other Monetary Financial Liabilites 6.713.836 98.160 1.768.666 808313
12b. Other Non-Monetary Financial Liabilities - - - -
13. Current Liabilitics (10+11+12) 148.775.118 35.599.524 13.343.205 2.866.574
14, Trade Payables - - - -
15. Financial Liabilities 1.843.475 - 580.149 -
16a. Other Monetary - - -
Financial Liabilities - . - -
16b. Other Non-Monetary
Financial Liabilities - - - -
17. Non-Current Lisbilties (14+15+16) 1843475 - 580.149 -
18. Total Liabilitics (13+17) 150.618.593 35.599.524 13.923.354 2.866.574
19. Net asset / liability position of
off-balance sheet derivatives (19a-19h) - - - -
19a. Off-balance shect foreign
curreney derivative assets - - - .
19h. Off-balance sheet foreign
currency derivative labilities - - - -
20, Net foreign currency
asset liability position (9-18+19) {79.991.553) (14.362.367) (11.338.517) (2.202.2710)
21. Net foreign currency asset / Hability
position of monctary ifems
(1+2a+5+6a-10-11-12a-14-15-16a) {80.544.237) (14.506.917y  (AL343.517) (2.318.772)

22. Fair value of forcign currency
hedged financial assets
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lirs (“TL™) unjess otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 36 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{Continued)
36.1 Financial Risk Management {Continued)

(iv) Foreign carrency risk (Continued)

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk of US Dollar, Euro and other foreign currency.

30 June 2016

Profit/Loss
Foreign currency  Forcign currency
appreciation depreciation
If the US dollar had changed by 10% against the T1,
USD net (liabilities) / assets 64.800 {64.800)
Hedging amount of USD - -
USD net effect on (loss} / income 64.800 (64.800)
if the EUR had changed by 10% against the TL
Euro net (liabilities) / assets (900.987) 300.987
Hedging amount of Euro - -
Euro net effect on (loss) / income (900.987) 900,987
If other foreign currency had changed by
10% against the TL
Other foreign currency net (liabilities) / assets 99.311 (99311
Hedging amount of other foreign currency - -
Other foreign currency net effect on
(loss} / income 99.311 (99.311)
31 December 2015 Profit/Loss

Foreign currency

Forcign currency

appreciation depreciation
If the US dollar had changed by 10% against the TL
USD net {liabilities) / assets (1.436.237) 1.436.237
Hedging amount of USD - -
USD net effect on (loss) / income {1.436.237) 1.436.237
1f the EUR had changed by 10% apainst the TL
Euro net (lrabilities} / assets (1.133.832) 1.133.852
Hedging amount of Euro - .
Euro net effect on (loss) / income (1.133.852) 1.133.852
H other foreign currency had changed by

10% against the TL

Other foreign currency net (liabilities) / assets (220.227) 220.227
Hedping amount of other forcign currency - -
Other foreign currency net effect on
{loss) / income (220.227) 220,227
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL”Y uniess otherwise ndicased )

NOTE 36 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

36.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern in and to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capilal structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to sharcholders in accordance with the CMB regulations, issue new shares or sell assels to decrease
borrowing. There are covenants related with the bank borrowings stated in Note 7 which the Group
has to fulfill net debt / equily ratio as stated in the contracts of the related bank borrowings.

The net hability/total equity ratio at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2005

Total lLiability © 275.620.764 316.009.157
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5 (29.979.745) {R6.987.420)
Net liability 245.641.019 229.021.737
Egquity 338.059.336 353.219.223
Net liability and Equity 583.700.355 582.240.960
Net Liability / Total equity ratio 0,42 0,39

1t is calcuiated by subtracting long-term and shori-term labilities.
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HURRIYET GAZETECILIK VE MATBAACILIK A.S.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 36 JUNE 2016

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated.y

NOTE 37 - FINANCJAL INSTRUMENTS (FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES AND
EXPLANATIONS ON HEDGE ACCOQUNTING) (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair valuc of financial assets and habilities is assigned as below:

. Level 1: the fair value of linancial assets and (inancial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active hiquid markets are determined with reference (o quoted market prices;

. Level 2: the fair value of other financial asscts and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using
prices from observable current market {ransactions; and

. Level 3: the lair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are determined where
there is no observable market data.
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and habilities that are measured at fair value:

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of
cach reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial Liabilities are determined.
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NOTE 37 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES AND
EXPLANATIONS ON HEDGE ACCOUNTING) (Continued)

Fair value Valuation
Fair value hierarchy techmaque
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Foreign currency
forward contracts (2.121.372) - Level 2 Bank Quotation

Level classification of financial assets and habilities that are valued with their fair values are as
follows 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015:

Fair value as at Reporting Date

30 June Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

2016 TL TL TL

Land 67.305.283 - - 67.305.285
Building 52.931.073 - - 32.931.073

Fair value as at Reporting Date

31 December Level | Level 2 FLevel 3

2015 TL TL TL

Land 65,940,285 - - 63.940.283
Building 20.996.821 - - 200.996.821

30 Junc 2016, the fair value of the Group’s invesiment propertics are defined by the independent
valuation company. The fair value of the lands and buildings are defined by using the similarity
comparison approach and assumption mecthod with the analysis of similar real estaies (with the
comparable ones). As of reporting date the Group has not used different valuation technique.
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NOTE 38 ~SHARES IN OTHER ENTITIES

Summary of the financial information of TME, a subsidiary over which the Group has non-controlling
shares, are staled below. These summarized [inancial information represent the amounts without
considering the related party eliminations.

30 June 2016
Current assels 7.195.231
Non current assets 240.181.374
Currenl ligbilitics 268.332.631
Non current liabilitics 60.735.529
Total Equity (81.091.335)

1 January-

30 June 2016
Revenue 15.099.113
Costs (9.545.193)
Net loss for the period 5.553.922
Allocation of net loss for the period:
Attributable to equity holders of the parent company (41.558.221)
Adtributable 10 non-controlling interests {11.162.838)
Net loss for the period (32.721.079)

NOTE 39 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Confirmation of financial statements

Group’s 100% owned subsidiary Hurrivel Invest BV ("HIBV™), located in Holland, decided to
exercise all of new shares acquisition rights and commit {o exercise all of new shares acquisition rights
that are not used in the capital increase of the Group’s 78,37% owned subsidiary Trader Media East
LTD (“TME™), located in Jersey, from US Dollar 9.600.000 to US Dollar 88.200.000. It is planned
that the borrowings of TME from HIBV, to be offset by the amount gained from the capital increase.



